
Goodhue County Planning Commission
Government Center -  Board Room

509 West 5th St, Red Wing MN 55066

Planning Advisory Commission

Call Meeting To Order

Approval Of Current Agenda

Approval Of Previous Month's Meeting Minutes

March 19, 2018 Meeting Minutes

MINUTES_MARCH2018_PAC_DRAFT.PDF

Conflict/Disclosure Of Interests

Public Hearings:

Request For Amendments To Article 11, Section 24 (Preservation Of Farming Practices) 
Request submitted by Circle “K” Farms (Michael, Yon, & Jeff  Kohlnhofer) to consider proposed text 

amendments to Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance Article 11, Section 24 (Preservation of Farming 
Practices). 

PACREPORT_TEXTAMEND-ART11SEC24.PDF

Request For Map Amendment (Rezone)
Request for map amendment submitted by Blake Thompson to rezone 38 acres from A3 (Urban Fringe 
District) to R1 (Suburban Residence District). Parcels 31.001.6100 and 31.001.6200. Part of the SW ¼ 

of SE ¼ and GOVT Lot 2 in Sect 01 Twp 112 Range 15 in Featherstone Township. A3 Zoned District.  

PACPACKET_THOMPSON.PDF

Request For CUP For A Veterinary Clinic
Request submitted by Nicholas and Krystyna Stoffel for CUP to establish a Veterinary Clinic at 26336 
130th Ave Welch, MN 55089. Parcel 46.029.0303. Part of the NW ¼ of NW ¼, SW ¼ of NW ¼, and SE 
¼ of NW ¼,  Sect 29 Twp 113 Range 16 in Welch Township. A2 Zoned District.  

PACPACKET_STOFFEL.PDF

Simanski Metals LLC (Kevin Simanski)
29409 HWY 58 BLVD, Red Wing, MN 55066. Parcels 34.008.1400 and 34.008.1500. Part of the SE ¼ of 
NW ¼, Sect 08 Twp 112 Range 14 in Hay Creek Township. A2 and B2 Zoned District. 

1. Map Amendment (Rezone)
Request for map amendment to rezone part of Parcel 34.008.1500 from B2 to A2.

2. CUP for a Junk/Salvage Reclamation Yard
Request for a conditional use permit (CUP) to establish a Junk/Salvage Reclamation Yard for storage, 
loading, and processing of recyclable materials.

PACPACKET_SIMANSKI_1.PDF

Adjourn

Anyone interested is invited to attend. Agenda items may be subject to change. 

Goodhue County Land Use Management

w  Goodhue County Government Center w  509 West Fifth Street w  Red Wing w  Minnesota w  55066 w
w  Building w Planning w  Zoning w  Telephone: 651/385-3104 w Fax: 651/385-3106 w

1.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

2.

Documents:

3.

Documents:

4.

Documents:



Goodhue County Planning Commission
Government Center -  Board Room

509 West 5th St, Red Wing MN 55066

Planning Advisory Commission

Call Meeting To Order

Approval Of Current Agenda

Approval Of Previous Month's Meeting Minutes

March 19, 2018 Meeting Minutes

MINUTES_MARCH2018_PAC_DRAFT.PDF

Conflict/Disclosure Of Interests

Public Hearings:

Request For Amendments To Article 11, Section 24 (Preservation Of Farming Practices) 
Request submitted by Circle “K” Farms (Michael, Yon, & Jeff  Kohlnhofer) to consider proposed text 

amendments to Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance Article 11, Section 24 (Preservation of Farming 
Practices). 

PACREPORT_TEXTAMEND-ART11SEC24.PDF

Request For Map Amendment (Rezone)
Request for map amendment submitted by Blake Thompson to rezone 38 acres from A3 (Urban Fringe 
District) to R1 (Suburban Residence District). Parcels 31.001.6100 and 31.001.6200. Part of the SW ¼ 

of SE ¼ and GOVT Lot 2 in Sect 01 Twp 112 Range 15 in Featherstone Township. A3 Zoned District.  

PACPACKET_THOMPSON.PDF

Request For CUP For A Veterinary Clinic
Request submitted by Nicholas and Krystyna Stoffel for CUP to establish a Veterinary Clinic at 26336 
130th Ave Welch, MN 55089. Parcel 46.029.0303. Part of the NW ¼ of NW ¼, SW ¼ of NW ¼, and SE 
¼ of NW ¼,  Sect 29 Twp 113 Range 16 in Welch Township. A2 Zoned District.  

PACPACKET_STOFFEL.PDF

Simanski Metals LLC (Kevin Simanski)
29409 HWY 58 BLVD, Red Wing, MN 55066. Parcels 34.008.1400 and 34.008.1500. Part of the SE ¼ of 
NW ¼, Sect 08 Twp 112 Range 14 in Hay Creek Township. A2 and B2 Zoned District. 

1. Map Amendment (Rezone)
Request for map amendment to rezone part of Parcel 34.008.1500 from B2 to A2.

2. CUP for a Junk/Salvage Reclamation Yard
Request for a conditional use permit (CUP) to establish a Junk/Salvage Reclamation Yard for storage, 
loading, and processing of recyclable materials.

PACPACKET_SIMANSKI_1.PDF

Adjourn

Anyone interested is invited to attend. Agenda items may be subject to change. 

Goodhue County Land Use Management

w  Goodhue County Government Center w  509 West Fifth Street w  Red Wing w  Minnesota w  55066 w
w  Building w Planning w  Zoning w  Telephone: 651/385-3104 w Fax: 651/385-3106 w

1.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

2.

Documents:

3.

Documents:

4.

Documents:

https://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/89d2cd46-d2c5-45d0-ba89-487edaf00438


Page - 1 - 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

March 19, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
The meeting of the Goodhue County Planning Advisory Commission was called to order at 7:00 
PM by Chair Darwin Fox at the Goodhue County Government Center 3rd Floor Board Room in 
Red Wing, Minnesota. 

Roll Call 

Commissioners Present: Ron Allen, Tom Drazkowski, Len Feuling, Tom Gale, Darwin Fox, Marc 
Huneke, Richard (Dick) Nystuen, Sarah Pettit 

Commissioners Absent: None 

Staff Present: Land Use Management Director Lisa Hanni, Zoning Administrator Mike Wozniak, 
Zoning Assistant Ryan Bechel 

1. Approval of Agenda 

1Motion by Commissioner Feuling; seconded by Commissioner Huneke to approve the meeting 
agenda. Motion carried 8:0  

2. Approval of Minutes 
2Motion by Commissioner Feuling; seconded by Commissioner Pettit to approve the previous 
month’s meeting minutes. Motion carried 8:0  

3. Conflict/Disclosure of Interest  

There were no reported conflicts of interest.  

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS: Roger Kittelson (applicant/owner) 
39744 Highway 58 Blvd, Goodhue, MN 55027, Parcel 33.033.0600, Part of the NE ¼ of the SE ¼ 
Section 33 Twp 111 Range 15 in Goodhue Township. A1 Zoned District 
 
A. CUP for a Bed and Breakfast Inn 

Request for a conditional use permit (CUP) to establish a Bed and Breakfast Inn with a 
proposed maximum occupancy of 15 guests.  
 

B. CUP for a Non-Agricultural Use Associated with Agri-tourism (Wedding and 
Event Center) 
Request for a conditional use permit (CUP) to establish a Wedding Facility with a proposed 
maximum occupancy of 150 guests.  

The applicant was not present to represent the application. 

Mike Wozniak (Wozniak) presented the staff report and attachments.  

Commissioner Pettit raised concerns regarding the classification of wedding event centers as 
an “Agri-tourism” use. She stated was not opposed to the type of use, but stated the 
classification of the use as being “Agri-tourism” doesn’t fit the definition as was initially 
intended.  

Lisa Hanni (Hanni) referenced the Article 10 definition of “Agricultural Tourism”  

AGRICULTURAL TOURISM. “Ag-tourism” and/or “Agri-tourism” means the practice of 
visiting an agribusiness, horticultural, or agricultural operation, including, but not limited 
to, a farm, orchard, vineyard, winery, greenhouse, hunting preserve, a companion animal 
or livestock show, for the purpose of recreation, education, or active involvement in the 
operation, other than as a contractor or employee of the operation.” 

 
 
 
 



Page - 2 - 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

March 19, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
Ryan Bechel (Bechel) added the definition of a “Non-agricultural Uses Associated with Agri-
tourism.”  

NON-AGRICULTURAL USES/ACTIVITIES ASSOCIATED WITH AN AGRITOURISM 
USE. This means activities that are part of an agri-tourism operation’s total offerings but 
not tied to farming or the farm’s buildings, equipment, fields, etc. Such non-agriculturally 
related uses include but are not limited to: 
A. Temporary Amusement rides associated with an event 
B. Art or cultural related festivals 
C. Gift shops for the sale of non-agricultural products 
D. Benefit events 
E. Kitchen facilities, processing/cooking items for sale (subject to State of Minnesota, 
Department of Public Health standards) including eating establishments such as 
restaurants or cafés. 
F. Temporary camping (subject to State of Minnesota Department of Public 
Health Standards for Recreation Camping) 
G. Wedding ceremonies or receptions 
H. Wine and catered food events 
I. Reunions 
J. Concerts 
K. Social gatherings or similar types of events 

 

Commissioner Gale commented that it may not be a tourism use directly related to agriculture 
but rather a tourism use in an agricultural district (such as snowmobiling).  

Commissioner Pettit suggested that the county has made efforts to more narrowly define other 
uses in the ordinance that are too broad by definition and Non-Ag Uses Associated with Agri-
tourism should also be reviewed in the future.  

There was discussion of potential reclassifications for wedding event centers and previously 
permitted uses under the existing ordinance language (Round Barn, Legacy Hills). 

Hanni stated LUM staff would review existing ordinance language and determine if wedding 
event centers may be more appropriately classified. 

Chair Fox opened the Public Hearing. 

No one spoke for or against the request. 

3After Chair Fox asked three times for comments. It was moved by Commissioner 
Pettit and seconded by Commissioner Huneke to close the public hearing. Motion 
carried 8:0 

Wozniak commented that Mr. Kittleson does conduct organic farming on the property. 

Commissioner Pettit asked staff for clarification regarding the Applicant’s statements 
pertaining to odor concerns that were provided in the submitted application. 

Wozniak responded that he was led to believe there were not any immediate odor concerns but 
the Applicant was expressing his willingness to cooperate with neighboring property owners 
to resolve potential conflicts. 

Commissioner Pettit commented that it was a “red flag” and highlighted a common concern 
with these facilities bringing guests who may be unaccustomed to agricultural farming 
practices into agricultural districts.  

Commissioner Pettit asked how long the Applicant had occupied the property. 

 
 
 
 



Page - 3 - 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

March 19, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
Wozniak replied the property had been in the Applicant’s family for some time and it appeared 
the Applicant had an understanding about Agricultural impacts.  

Commissioner Fox commented that it is difficult to get an impression of an Applicant’s 
intentions when they are not present to answer the questions. 

Commissioner Drazkowski added that given no one from the public came to object, there 
appears to be few concerns from those in the immediate vicinity. 

Hanni mentioned about adding a condition that the Applicant make guests aware of 
agricultural operations in the area which has been added to similar facilities in the past. 

Bechel stated the aforementioned condition stated “The Applicants must notify event 
participants of the local crop and animal agriculture farming practices in the area, which could 
include odors, dust, large farm equipment on the roads, and hauling or spreading of agricultural 
related products.” 
4Motion by Commissioner Nystuen seconded by Commissioner Drazkowski, for 
the Planning Advisory Commission to recommend the County Board to  

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• add condition #10 to the staff suggested conditions; 
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; 

and; 

Recommend the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request from Roger Kittelson 
for a CUP to establish a Wedding Event Center with a proposed maximum occupancy of 150 
guests.  Subject to the following conditions: 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP; 

2. Hours of operation shall be June 1 – September 30 Thursday through Sunday, 8:00 AM 
to 10:00 PM unless a variance is granted by the Goodhue County Board of Adjustment to 
allow hours to extend to no later than 12:00 PM on Friday and Saturday evenings. 

3. Maximum occupancy shall be limited to 150 guests per event and a maximum of 8 
Events per June – September Season with a limit of  1 event per day (Thursday – 
Sunday); 

4. On-street event parking shall be prohibited;  

5. The Applicant shall provide the County evidence of driveway access approval from 
MNDOT District 6 prior to start of operations; 

6. Use of the property by event guests for over-night stays shall require issuance of a 
separate CUP/IUP; 

7. Security personnel shall be provided at events in which alcohol is served; 

8. Applicants shall work with Goodhue County Environmental Health to achieve 
compliance with the GOODHUE COUNTY SUBSURFACE SEWAGE TREATMENT 
SYSTEM ORDINANCE.  A septic system design and application must be approved prior 
to any construction on site or use of the property as proposed. The proposed use will be 
subject to an annual operating permit under the Subsurface Sewage Treatment 
Ordinance; 

 
 
 
 



Page - 4 - 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

March 19, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
9. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 

regulations. 

10. The applicants must notify event participants of the local crop and animal agriculture 
farming practices in the area, which could include odors, dust, large farm equipment on 
the roads, and hauling or spreading of agricultural related products; 

At 39744 Highway 58 Blvd, Goodhue, MN 55027, Parcel 33.033.0600, Part of the NE ¼ of 
the SE ¼ Section 33 Twp 111 Range 15 in Goodhue Township as legally described in 
Document #638002. 

Motion carried 8:0 

Commissioner Gale asked about the hours of operation for the Bed and Breakfast Inn. 

Wozniak replied there is typically not hours of operation applied to Bed and Breakfast Inns 
given that guests are allowed to stay overnight. He referenced the Applicant’s “days of 
operation” indicated in the application (Thursday through Sunday). 

Hanni replied that condition #2 should be amended to state “days of operation”, not “hours” to 
reflect the Applicant’s application. She also asked the PAC if they felt it would be warranted to 
include a condition similar to condition #10 added to the Wedding Event Center request. 

Commissioner Gale agreed that it would be beneficial to include the condition.  
5Motion by Commissioner Drazkowski seconded by Commissioner Huneke, for 
the Planning Advisory Commission to recommend the County Board to  

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• amend condition #2 to state “days of operation”; 
• add condition #10 to the staff suggested conditions; 
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; 

and; 

Recommend the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request from Roger Kittelson 
for a CUP to establish a Bed and Breakfast Inn with a proposed maximum occupancy of 15 
guests.  Subject to the following conditions: 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. Days of operation shall be year round Thursday - Sunday; 

3. Maximum occupancy shall be limited to 15 guests per night; 

4. No more than 6 rooms shall be designated for guest use; 

5. On-street parking shall be prohibited; 

6. Applicants shall work with Goodhue County Environmental Health to achieve 
compliance with the GOODHUE COUNTY SUBSURFACE SEWAGE TREATMENT 
SYSTEM ORDINANCE; 

7. The applicant shall provide evidence to the County that MNDOT District 6 has approved 
the use of the driveway access to Hwy 58 for the proposed use(s) of the property; 

8. All applicable building code requirements must be met prior to start of operations; 

9. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations.  

 
 
 
 



Page - 5 - 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

March 19, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
10. The applicants must notify event participants of the local crop and animal agriculture 

farming practices in the area, which could include odors, dust, large farm equipment on 
the roads, and hauling or spreading of agricultural related products; 

At 39744 Highway 58 Blvd, Goodhue, MN 55027, Parcel 33.033.0600, Part of the NE ¼ of 
the SE ¼ Section 33 Twp 111 Range 15 in Goodhue Township as legally described in 
Document #638002. 

Motion carried 8:0 

 
PUBLIC HEARING: to consider Goodhue County Ordinance updates 

- Article 10 (Definitions), Article 11 (Performance Standards) regarding proposed Contractor Yard 
definition and related performance standards. Article 21 A-1, Agricultural Protection District, 
Article 22 A-2, Agricultural District, and Article 23 A-3, Urban Fringe District in regards to 
Contractor Yards. 

 
Hanni presented the staff report and appendixes. 

Commissioner Fox commented that proposed changes would allow greater flexibility for 
Applicant’s and allow the PAC to review larger scale proposals without necessitating a 
variance. 

Chair Fox opened the Public Hearing. 

No one spoke for or against the request. 

6After Chair Fox asked three times for comments. It was moved by Commissioner 
Feuling and seconded by Commissioner Allen to close the public hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0 
7Motion by Commissioner Pettit seconded by Commissioner Huneke, for the 
Planning Advisory Commission to: 

• adopt the staff report into the record and; 
Recommend the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the proposed amendments to Article 30 
(Commercial Recreational District) as presented. 
 

Motion carried 8:0 

PUBLIC HEARING: to consider Goodhue County Ordinance updates 

- Article 10 (Definitions), Article 11 (Performance Standards) regarding proposed Contractor Yard 
definition and related performance standards. Article 21 A-1, Agricultural Protection District, 
Article 22 A-2, Agricultural District, and Article 23 A-3, Urban Fringe District in regards to 
Contractor Yards. 

 

Hanni presented the staff report and appendixes.  

Commissioner Drazkowski asked how the suggested 3 acre minimum lot size was determined. 

Hanni replied the 3 acre minimum was suggested through discussion with the Zoning Density 
Sub-Committee by assessing various established businesses around Goodhue County and it 
was felt that 3 acres was the minimum size necessary to accommodate the establishment of 
these types of uses given space needs and proposed setbacks.  

Commissioner Pettit added that septic system installation and replacement site space needs 

 
 
 
 



Page - 6 - 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

March 19, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
were also considered and it was concluded that 3 acres provided enough space to 
accommodate those needs. 

Commissioner Fox added that the specific types of uses being allowed by the proposed 
definition warrant a larger minimum lot size to meet setbacks and accommodate potential 
future growth of the business. 

Commissioner Drazkowski noted the staff provided research of similar county standards did 
not require a minimum lot size and asked if we are arbitrarily setting a state standard. 

Hanni replied we aren’t setting a statewide standard, but setting a standard for what we think 
would work in Goodhue County. 

Commissioner Huneke commented that setting a minimum standard at 3 acres might 
arbitrarily restrict some legitimate business ventures that don’t require as much space from 
being established in the county. 

Commissioner Pettit commented that a larger minimum lot size discourages people from 
initially establishing a business on a lot that wouldn’t be able to accommodate future business 
growth. 

Commissioner Drazkowski commented that the usage of “building trades” in the proposed 
definition allows for a wide range of uses that may not require as much space. 

Hanni replied that businesses have many opportunities to get established (such as a Home 
Business) and the perceived goal of the proposed Contractors Yards is not to create storage 
shed-lots for all businesses in the county.  

Commissioner Huneke stated that if the minimum lot size were not included, the PAC could 
have the opportunity to recommend denial of a proposal if they felt the site was not large 
enough. 

Commissioner Allen commented that a 3 acre minimum allows for greater flexibility for a 
business to do some expansion after they become established and invested on a parcel.  

Commissioner Fox commented that an added benefit of a larger lot size is a reduction in 
potential variance requests for people that want to expand on a lot that is too small. 

Commissioner Drazkowski responded that variance requests could work both ways if an 
applicant has just below the minimum required lot size. 

Hanni stated that it’s not possible to create a standard to apply to every scenario.  

Bechel commented that a establishing a minimum lot size does provide an opportunity to 
discourage an applicant from establishing a business on a lot that is too small to accommodate 
any potential future growth.  

Commissioner Gale asked what the county’s minimum lot size. 

Hanni replied that it depends on the zoning district but the minimum in the agricultural 
districts is 2 acres. 

Commissioner Fox added that many townships have higher minimums than the county. 

Commissioner Gale asked if they could match the required minimum lot size with the existing 
minimum lot size in the district regulations.  

 
 
 
 



Page - 7 - 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

March 19, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
Hanni mentioned that there are implications to be considered for folks in the A3 district where 
the minimum lot size is 35 acres.  

Commissioner Drazkowski mentioned that the proposed definition is broad and he doesn’t 
want to restrict business “contractors” that aren’t the normal contractors that come to mind. 

Commissioner Huneke stated that the minimum lot size may rule out some non-traditional 
contractors that don’t require as much space. 

There was discussion amongst the PAC regarding what would be an appropriate lot size. 

Hanni clarified that the proposed Contractors Yards are not intended to serve small scale 
contractors that are better fit into existing Home Business regulations. The standards are 
meant to appropriately permit large scale contractors that have been inappropriately 
permitted as “businesses intended to serve the agricultural community.” 

Commissioner Pettit commented that the goal of the proposed language is not to restrict small 
businesses, but to provide a mechanism for them to be appropriately permitted. 

Bechel commented that he would caution the PAC from matching the required minimum lot 
size to existing district regulations as it would put those in A3 at a large disadvantage given 
the existing 35 acre minimum lot size. If the goal is to establish a smaller required lot size, 
maybe 2 acres would be more appropriate.  

Commissioner Fox agreed stating he owns property in A3 and could see how that would be a 
large disadvantage for those landowners. 

Chair Fox opened the Public Hearing. 

No one spoke for or against the request. 

8After Chair Fox asked three times for comments. It was moved by Commissioner 
Feuling and seconded by Commissioner Allen to close the public hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0 

Commissioner Nystuen recommended the PAC vote by a show of hands given the difference of 
opinion on the proposed amendment.  
9Motion by Commissioner Nystuen seconded by Commissioner Allen, for the 
Planning Advisory Commission to: 

• adopt the staff report into the record and; 
Recommend the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE as presented the proposed amendments 
to Article 10 (Definitions), Article 11 (Performance Standards) regarding proposed Contractors Yard 
definition and related performance standards. Article 21 A-1, Agricultural Protection District, Article 
22 A-2, Agricultural District, and Article 23 A-3, Urban Fringe District in regards to Contractor Yards.  
 

Split Vote (4 yes: 4 no) Motion denied 
10Motion by Commissioner Nystuen seconded by Commissioner Allen, to amend 
the motion to: 

• adopt the staff report into the record; 
• Amend Article 11 Section 33 Subd. 1(A) to require a minimum lot size of 2 acres; 

Recommend the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the proposed amendments to Article 10 
(Definitions), Article 11 (Performance Standards) regarding proposed Contractors Yard definition and 
related performance standards. Article 21 A-1, Agricultural Protection District, Article 22 A-2, 

 
 
 
 



Page - 8 - 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

March 19, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
Agricultural District, and Article 23 A-3, Urban Fringe District in regards to Contractor Yards.  
 
Split Vote (4 yes; 4 no) Motion denied 
11Motion by Commissioner Huneke seconded by Commissioner Drazkowski, for 
the Planning Advisory Commission to: 
Recommend the County Board of Commissioners to: 

• adopt the staff report into the record; 
• APPROVE the proposed amendments to Article 10 (Definitions), Article 11 

(Performance Standards), Article 21 A-1, Agricultural Protection District, Article 22 A-2, 
Agricultural District, and Article 23 A-3, Urban Fringe District as presented and 
recommend the County Board of Commissioners determine the  minimum parcel size 
(Article 11 Section 33 Subd. 1 (A) for proposed Contractors Yards. 

 

Motion carried 8:0 

5. Other discussion 
• A3 
• Table of Uses 
• Conservation Subdivisions 

 
12Adjourn: Moved by Commissioner Feuling, second by Commissioner 
Drazkowski, to adjourn the Planning Commission meeting at 8:18 PM.  
 
Motion carried 8:0 

Respectfully Submitted,  

Ryan Bechel; Recording Secretary 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 



Page - 9 - 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

March 19, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

1 APPROVE the PAC meeting agenda.  
Motion carried 8:0. 

2 APPROVE the previous month’s meeting minutes.  
Motion carried 8:0. 

3 Motion to close the Public Hearing.  
Motion carried 8:0 

4 Recommend the County Board of Commissioners Approve the Kittelson Non-Ag Uses Associated with Agri-
tourism CUP: 

Motion Carried 8:0 
5Recommend the County Board of Commissioners Approve the Roger Kittelson Bed & Breakfast Inn CUP: 

Motion Carried 8:0 
6 Motion to close the Public Hearing. 

Motion carried 8:0 
7Recommend the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the proposed amendments to Article 30 (CR Zone) 

Motion Carried 8:0 
8 Motion to close the Public Hearing. 

Motion Denied 4:4 
9Recommend the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the proposed amendments to Contractors Yard as 
presented 

Motion Denied 4:4 
10Recommend the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the proposed amendments to Contractors Yard with 
suggested amendments to Article 11 section 33 subd. 1(A) 

Motion Denied 4:4 
11Recommend the County Board of Commissioners CONSIDER the amendment to Article 11 section 33 subd. 1(A) 
and APPROVE the rest of the amendment as presented. 

Motion Carried 8:0 
12 ADJOURN the Planning Commission meeting.  

Motion carried 8:0 

 
 
 
 

                                                 



 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 2 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Planning Commission 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: April 16, 2018 
Report date: April 6, 2018 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: Request for Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment 
  
 

Application Information: 
Applicant(s): Yon Kohlnhofer/Jack Perry  
Zoning Districts affected by text change:  A1, A2, A3 
 
Attachments and links: 
Applicant Text Amendment 
Staff Recommended Changes 
GC Element1:Agriculture (Comp Plan) 
Application Document 
GC Zoning Ordinance: http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
GC Comprehensive Plan: https://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/11368  
 
Background:  
Application:  
The County has received a request to amend Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance Article 11, Section 
24 PRESERVATION OF FARMING PRACTICES. 
Staff has added page numbers (center top of page) to the Application Document submitted by the 
applicant for reference (beginning on page 22 of this pdf document): 

Pages 1 -2: Text Amendment application 

Pages 3-5: Proposed text amendments 

Pages 5-6: Practical Application of the Proposed Ordinance Amendment 

Pages 6-7: Legal Authority for such an enactment  

Pages 7-9: An Example for such an enactment 

Pages9-10: Consistency with the Ordinance 

Page 10-12: Consistency with the Plan (Comprehensive Plan) 

Pages 14-16: Attachment A- Todd County’s Right-to-Farm Ordinance 

Pages 17-19: Attachment B- 2/9/16 Order (re: Noise) 

Pages 20-24: Attachment C- Dec. 6, 2017 Order (re: Right-to-Farm Ordinance) 

Pages 25-27: Attachment D- Todd County’s (proposed) Revised Right-to-Farm Ordinance  

 
Staff Review: 
Over the years the County has held public meetings to discuss and amend text within the Zoning 
Ordinance, and in cases such as the Confined Feedlot Regulations (Article 13), the County Board 
established a citizen committee to review and suggest text modifications, which were subsequently 
adopted. 

http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428
https://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/11368


“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 2 

The County adopts Minnesota Rules 7020, Rules for the Control of Pollution from Animal Feedlots, 
in addition to specific additional regulation as outlined in our Confined Feedlot Regulations (Article 
13).  Some of the additional regulations set by the County include setbacks and the Odor Offset 
Model for acceptable limits of odor at specific distances. 

There is an on-going concern at the Planning Commission that non-agricultural uses in the 
Agricultural districts may limit the establishment, expansion, or continuation of agricultural 
operations such as feedlots.  This is evidenced by recent conditions to some non-agricultural uses in 
agricultural zones stated as “The applicant must notify event participants of the local crop and 
animal agriculture farming practices in the area, which include odors, dust, large farm equipment on 
the roads and hauling or spreading of agricultural related products.” 

In 2017, the County worked with the Townships and asked them specifically if they were satisfied 
with the dwelling density in the County and all but 3 townships were satisfied with the limited 
amount of additional dwelling sites available.  Three Townships wanted more options for a limited 
amount of dwellings in specific parts of their Township.  Overall, the Townships had similar concerns 
about additional dwellings limiting agricultural practices in the County. 

Staff do not believe we have legal authority to deny a party the ability to sue another party and 
therefore do not agree with the applicant’s suggested wording “no property owner shall bring an 
action(s) of law,…”  We do however state that the County will not consider a legally operating or 
permitted feedlot a nuisance and have suggested additional wording to reinforce the position. 
 
County Land Use staff and the County Attorney have reviewed the proposed changes and suggest 
alternative wording found in the Staff Recommended Changes attachment. 
 
Staff recommendation is based on the review of the submitted application prior to the public 
hearing. 

 

Staff Recommendation: 
LUM Staff recommends the Planning Advisory Commission  

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

 

recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE Staff’s recommended wording for 
the text amendment request and DENY the language changes requested by the applicants to the 
extent they are inconsistent with staff recommendations. 

 



lhanni
Highlight

lhanni
Highlight

lhanni
Highlight

lhanni
Highlight

lhanni
Text Box
Applicant Text Amendment



lhanni
Text Box
Applicant Text Amendment



lhanni
Text Box
Applicant Text Amendment



Staff Recommended Changes 
SECTION 24. PRESERVATION OF FARMING PRACTICES 
It is the declared policy of this County to enhance and encourage agricultural operations within the 
County. 

Where non-agricultural land uses extend into agricultural areas or exist side by side, agricultural 
operations may be the subject of private nuisance complaints that would result in the cessation or 
curtailment of operations. Such actions discourage investments in farm improvements to the 
detriment of adjacent agricultural uses and the economic viability of the County's agricultural 
industry as a whole. 

It is the purpose and intent of this section to reduce the loss to the County of its agricultural 
resources by limiting the circumstances under which agricultural operations may be considered a 
nuisance. 

Agricultural production that complied with all Goodhue County Ordinances, shall not be considered 
by this County as constituting a nuisance. 

This Ordinance is not to be construed as in any way modifying or abridging the State law, rather, it is 
only to be utilized in the interpretation and enforcement of the provisions of this code and County 
regulations. 

Subd. 1. AGRICULTURAL OPERATION. A facility consisting of real or personal property used 
for the production of crops including fruit and vegetable production, tree farming, 
livestock, poultry, dairy products, or poultry products, but not a facility primarily 
engaged in processing agricultural products. Agricultural operation shall also include 
certain farm activities and uses as follows: chemical and fertilizer spraying, farm 
machinery noise, extended hours of operation, manure collection, disposal, spreading 
or storing, open storage of machinery, feedlots, odors produced from farm animals, 
crops or products used in farming. 

Subd. 2. ESTABLISHED DATE OF OPERATION. For the purposes of this section, the 
established date of operation shall be the date on which the agricultural operation 
commenced or was permitted, whichever is earliest. 

Subd. 3. AGRICULTURAL OPERATION NOT A NUISANCE. The County will not view Aan 
agricultural operation which continues without interruption or change as shall not 
become a private nuisance if the operation was not a nuisance at its established date of 
operation, is permitted or conditionally permitted by the County or MPCA, and the 
activity is complying with the local, County, State, and Federal permits, ordinance, 
rules, statutes, and other regulations which both apply to and are enforceable against 
the farming operation. The provisions of this subdivision do not apply: 

A. To a condition or injury which results from the negligent or improper operation of an 
agricultural operation or from operations contrary to commonly accepted agricultural 
practices. 

B. To applicable State or local laws, ordinances, rules or permits. 

C. When an agricultural operation causes  injury or  direct  threat  or  injury to  the health 
or safety of any  person. 

D. To the pollution of, or change in the condition of, waters of the State or the water 
flow of waters on the lands of any person; 

E. To an animal feedlot facility of one thousand (1,000) or more animal units. 
 

 

lhanni
Highlight



 

ELEMENT 1: 
AGRICULTURE

Page 7



 AGRICULTURE 

ELEMENT 1: AGRICULTURE 
 

 AN ESTIMATED 70% OF THE COUNTY’S 758 
SQUARE MILES HAS BEEN IDENTIFIED AS PRIME 

FARMLAND BY THE USDA AND 92% OF GOODHUE 
COUNTY’S PRIME FARMLAND IS HARVESTED. 

(USDA & NRCS, Web Soil Survey, 2013)

 

 

OVERVIEW 
 
 
 

Goodhue County has a long history of 
agricultural priorities: with more than 
492 square miles of land in Goodhue 
County being harvested. Agriculture is 
highly valued by both urban and rural 
residents. The preservation of 
agriculture is valued as a component of 
the economy, a land resource, a visual 
feature of the landscape, and a way of 
life. Desire to protect the County’s 
agricultural and rural landscape also 
acknowledges the aesthetic and quality 
of life values of agriculture, as well as 
the economic benefits to both the 
famers and the County as a whole.  

Agricultural zoning districts have been 
established to maintain and preserve 
agricultural land. This Plan classifies 
agricultural lands into three general 
categories: plant agriculture, animal 
agriculture and agricultural related 
business. This element focuses on 
assisting the competitiveness of our 
agricultural enterprises and protecting 
the farmland base that is key to a 
thriving agricultural economy. 

The success of agriculture in Goodhue 
County lies in the creativity and drive of 
our farmers. The nature of agriculture 
has evolved over the years, but changes 
have become even more pronounced 
recently. Farmers are becoming 
increasingly entrepreneurial and the line 
between agriculture and manufacturing, 
tourism, and other business is 
diminishing.  

Page 8



PLANT AGRICULTURE:  
 

ELEMENT 1: AGRICULTURE 

 

   
   

KEY POINTS STRENGTHS CHALLENGES 

Preserve and protect 
agricultural land for sustained 
and long term use 
 
Maintain and promote 
agricultural infrastructure to 
enhance and sustain agriculture 
operations 
 
Encourage best management 
practices for crop and animal 
agriculture in order to protect 
our water and land resources 
 
Encourage farming practices 
that maintain and improve soil 
health  
 
Continue to promote Erosion 
Control and adopt additional 
controls as farming practices 
evolve 
 
Continue to allow and support a 
broad range of agriculturally 
related businesses within 
incorporated and 
unincorporated areas of the 
County 

The majority of Goodhue 
County Soils are rated as prime 
farmland soils and an estimated 
92% of the prime farmland soils 
are harvested 
 
Goodhue County has a rich 
history of animal agriculture. 
The type of animals being 
reared include but are not 
limited to chicken, turkey, 
goats, lamb, alpaca, beef and 
dairy cattle, and hogs with the 
latter two being the County’s 
largest animal industries 
 
The limitation of housing 
through density controls has 
maintained large tracks of land 
available for agriculture 
purposes 
 
The County has a desirable 
scenic, rural character providing 
open spaces that contribute to 
valuable aesthetics and a high 
quality of life 

Secession planning for 
agricultural businesses and 
agricultural land uses 

 
Erosion and sedimentation 
control is a concern for farmers 
and adjacent landowners within 
the County 
 
An increase in housing density 
within agricultural zones could 
create potential conflicts 
between potentially 
incompatible land uses 
 
It cannot be the goal or the 
responsibility of local 
government to regulate and 
preserve every acre of farmland 
within its jurisdiction, but it is 
the intent to create a planning 
framework that maximizes the 
possibilities for voluntary 
farmland protection 

Page 9



PLANT AGRICULTURE 

ELEMENT 1: AGRICULTURE 
 

PLANT AGRICULTURE 
Agriculture joins tourism and manufacturing as a pillar of the County economy. There was 
a 4% increase of harvested land in the Goodhue County between 2007 and 2012 
according to the USDA, Censes of Agriculture.  

 

 

Page 10



PLANT AGRICULTURE:  
 

ELEMENT 1: AGRICULTURE 

PLANT AGRICULTURE 
Goodhue County has a higher percentage of land area in harvested agriculture than 
similar abutting Counties. During outreach activities, residents have continued to express 
the importance of maintaining and preserving agricultural land (Goodhue County, 2015).  

 

National Land Cover Database 2011 from www.mrlc.gov

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f t
ot

al
 la

nd
 a

cr
es

 h
ar

ve
st

ed
 

USDA Agricultural  
Census Year 

Harvested 
Farmland  

Goodhue County  
and surrounding 

counties 

2002
2007
2012

Page 11



PLANT AGRICULTURE 

ELEMENT 1: AGRICULTURE 
 

PLANT AGRICULTURE 
Goodhue County has rich, prime 
farming soils which have created a 
strong history in field crop 
agriculture. The most common 
field crops in Goodhue County are 
corn and soybeans. Over 170,000 
acres were reported in corn 
production for grain in 2012, and 
over 95,000 acres of land was 
reported in soybean for grain 
production (USDA, Census of 
Agriculture, 2012). As shown on the 
pie chart on the previous page, over 
half of the land in the County is 
classified as cultivated cropland. 
Due to potential conflicts between 
housing and agricultural production, 
the County has limited the dwelling 
densities within the agricultural 
districts.  

 

COMMUNITY SUPPORTED 
AGRICULTURE (CSA)  
Community Supported Agriculture 
(CSA) farms are direct-farm 
marketing and production model 
farms in which farmers sell shares 
to members who receive a portion 
of produce on a weekly schedule. 
Some CSA’s are purely produce, 
others allow for add-ons such as 
artisan cheese, bread, meat, eggs, 
cut flowers, or canned goods. This 
model of farming allows for the 
consumers to share in the risks and 
benefits of the farm. It allows the 
farmer to get paid before the crop 
yield, which reduces the risk to the 
farmer and spreads the risk 
amongst all shareholders. 
According to the 2012 Agricultural 
Census, Goodhue County has nine 
CSA’s, which dropped from twelve 
in 2007.  CSA’s can be supported 
through the same objectives and 
implementation measures for crop 
and animal agriculture, perhaps 
with an emphasis of agricultural 
tourism.   

An example of shares one could receive from a CSA during peak harvest. 

Page 12



PLANT AGRICULTURE:  
 

ELEMENT 1: AGRICULTURE 

VINEYARDS 
The University of Minnesota 
initiated a breeding program for 
cold hardy wine grapes in the mid 
1980’s. Through this research 
Minnesota has become a 
contender in the viticulture industry. 
It was reported in 2012 that 
Goodhue County was home to 16 
vineyards (USDA, Census of 
Agriculture, 2012). Vineyards have 
a unique part of recreation and 
tourism in the County. More 
information on vineyards in the 
County is available in the 
Recreation and Tourism element of 
this plan. 

 
ORCHARDS 
As of 2012, the County had thirty 
four farms in orchards which 
equated to 178 acres. (USDA, 
Census of Agriculture, 2012). 
Orchards in Goodhue County 
typically harvest varieties of apples; 
however they could contain other 
fruit trees such as peach, pear, or 
cherry.

BEE AND POLLINATOR 
COLONIES 
 
Pollinators include butterflies, 
moths, wasps, flies, beetles, ants, 
hummingbirds and bees.  There 
were 17 farms with honey bee 
colonies reported in 2012 (USDA, 
Census of Agriculture, 2012). Bees 
are a vital organism to our 
environment. Their pollination is a 
keystone role for the natural habitat 
and the productivity of agriculture. 
According to the U.S. Fish and 
Wildlife Service, honey bee and 
some pollinator populations are 
declining (U. S. Fish & Wildlife 
Service, 2015). Pollinator habitats 
provide food, shelter, and nesting 
resources for these species.  The 
Minnesota Department of 
Agriculture has developed best 
management practices for pollinator 
habitat for agricultural landscapes, 
yards, gardens, and roadside and 
right of ways.  Creating pollinator 
habitat near roads have multiple 
benefits such as improved visibility 
on the road, increased crop yields, 
and controlled soil erosion.

Photograph courtesy of Cannon Valley Vineyard  

 

Example of a living snow fence with nesting bird and pollinator components 
incorporated in. More examples can be found at 
http://www.dot.state.mn.us/environment/livingsnowfence/index.html 

Page 13

http://www.dot.state.mn.us/environment/livingsnowfence/index.html


PLANT AGRICULTURE 

ELEMENT 1: AGRICULTURE 
 

1. Soils with a prime farmland rating shall be 
protected from non-agricultural development 
whenever possible. 

2. Promote sustained, long term, agricultural 
industry or use as the desired use on 
agricultural lands. 

3. Lands outside the cities growth zones will be 
considered rural and shall be managed to 
preserve the rural character and be compatible 
with the continued operation of agricultural 
uses, their inherent activities, and lifestyle. 

4. If residential development occurs, it should be 
compact and designed to preserve the prime 
farmland for agricultural uses or other 
compatible uses to minimize conflicts between 
agricultural and non-agricultural uses. 

5. Encourage farmers to adopt and maintain sound 
environmental practices through the utilization 
of buffer zones to aid in soil erosion prevention 
practices, chemical application procedures, 
manure spreading, irrigation, odor control, 
ensure a sustained agricultural use of the land, 
and to protect ground water and 
environmentally sensitive habitats. 

6. Support and encourage private and public 
agreements that preserve farmland. 

7. Support new and innovative agricultural 
products such as vineyards, orchards, bee 
production, and other innovative practices to 
enhance emerging agriculture industries..

 
  

PLANT AGRICULTURE 
OBJECTIVES: 

Page 14



PLANT AGRICULTURE:  
 

ELEMENT 1: AGRICULTURE 

 

 

 

 

 

1. Soils with a prime farmland rating shall 
be protected from non-agricultural 
development whenever possible. 

2. Siting of dwellings or businesses should 
take into consideration the amount of 
farmland being used and shall minimize 
the impact to the greatest extent 
possible. 

3. Housing developments shall be directed 
to incorporated city limits first. 

4. Educate landowners on the requirements 
of management of protected waterways 
and agricultural uses. 

5. Establish a process for monitoring land 
applications of manure and processing of 
wastewater. 

6. Educational material will be made 
available to inform landowners the 
importance of pollinator habitats. 

PLANT AGRICULTURE 
IMPLEMENTATION 
STRATEGIES: 

Page 15



ANIMAL AGRICULTURE: 

ELEMENT 1: AGRICULTURE 
 

ANIMAL AGRICULTURE 
Goodhue County leads the region in the number of feedlot operations. The chart below 
shows number of farms with animal inventories for the types of animals listed. 

 
(USDA, Census of Agriculture, 2012) 

ANIMAL AGRICULTURE 

In 2012, it was reported that there were 
636 farms with cattle and calves, 
equating to over 59,000 animals; and 
63 farms with more than 143,000 hogs. 
Other typical animals in Goodhue 
County are sheep, chickens, and 
turkeys (USDA, Census of Agriculture, 
2012)

PASTURE AND GRAZING LANDS  
Soils that are not rated prime farmland 
may be better utilized as pasture and 
grazing lands.  Marginal farming soils 
and topographically challenged areas 
were historically identified as “goat 
prairies.” These areas may be ideal for 
pasture and grazing lands if best 
management practices are utilized to 
ensure that land is not over grazed 
causing soil erosion issues.

  

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

Cattle and
calves

inventory

Hogs and pigs
inventory

Sheep and
lambs

inventory

Layers
inventory

Turkeys

N
um

be
r 

of
 F

ar
m

s 

Type of Animal 

2012 Livestock and Poultry Farms 
Goodhue County

Rice County

Dodge County

Wabasha County

Page 16



ANIMAL AGRICULTURE:  
 

ELEMENT 1: AGRICULTURE 

 

 

 

EMERGING 
AGRICULTURE 

Goats: Generally goat 
farming means rearing goats 
for the purpose of harvesting 
milk, meat and fiber. Local 
goat herds have even been 
used by the Minnesota 
Department of Resources for 
controlling invasive species.  

 

Alpaca: Alpaca are docile 
creatures that are often 
raised for their soft fleece. 
They can produce an 
estimated 10 pounds of fiber 
each year. 

 

Small farms: Small farms 
are also known as hobby 
farms and are on the rise in 
Minnesota, according to the 
University of Minnesota 
Extension data. Small farm 
needs are slightly different 
than major farming 
operations. They require less 
land and may be secondary 
to the individuals’ main 
source of income. Small 
farms could be home to 
agricultural tourism 
opportunities such as corn 
mazes, direct farm markets, 
and pick your own produce. 

Page 17



ANIMAL AGRICULTURE: 

ELEMENT 1: AGRICULTURE 
 

 

 

1. Support and encourage farming activities so 
farmers can continue to provide an adequate 
supply of healthy livestock. 

2. Support agricultural industries that are 
directly and indirectly related to animal 
agriculture such as veterinarian services, crop 
advisory services, livestock sales and auction 
services. 

3. Encourage the use of best management 
practices for animal and crop agricultural 
practices. 

4. Continue to allow for agricultural tourism 
opportunities to allow diversification of the 
agricultural economy. 

5. Support the growth of animal agriculture in an 
environmentally friendly manner. 

 
  

ANIMAL AGRICULTURE 
OBJECTIVES: 

 

Page 18



ANIMAL AGRICULTURE:  
 

ELEMENT 1: AGRICULTURE 

 
 

1. The University of Minnesota’s odor OFFSET 
tool  will be used when considering new 
feedlots and feedlot expansion requests. 

2. Support and promote best management 
animal farming practices in order to protect 
the health, safety, welfare of the operation as 
well as surrounding properties. 

3. Work with the Soil and Water Conservation 
District to enforce the designated feedlot 
program in accordance with MN Rules 7020. 

4. Encourage best practices for waste handling, 
manure spreading, pest control, fertilizer 
application, and erosion control. 

5. Evaluate feedlots and feedlot registration 
requirements to ensure they are addressing 
health, safety, and welfare concerns for 
adjacent landowners, water quality, and soil 
health.

ANIMAL AGRICULTURE 
IMPLEMENTATION 
STRATEGIES: 

Page 19



AGRICULTURAL RELATED BUSINESSES 

ELEMENT 1: AGRICULTURE 
 

AGRICULTURAL RELATED BUSINESSES 
Goodhue County contains a number of agricultural industries within the agriculturally zoned districts 
and even within the urban fringe districts. Such industries are vital to economic sustainability of the 
County. They support and enhance the agricultural products within the County as well as offer 
alternative income methods to landowners. Such businesses include seed and crop research, 
fertilizer transfer stations, agricultural cooperatives and grain elevators, turkey manure compost site 
and transfer stations, hay transfer stations, livestock and agricultural product auctions, and 
veterinary services. Other businesses have shown to support the agricultural community such as 
welders, electricians, mechanics, and trucking and transport businesses. As shown in the following 
chart, 10% of conditional use permit requests since 2002 were requests to establish or expand a 
commercial or industrial use intended to serve the agricultural community. 

Home Occupation 
15% 

Utility/Energy* 
11% 

Ag Related 
Business** 

10% 
Other 

Commercial/industrial**
* 

23% 

Feedlot cup 
19% 

None of the above**** 
22% 

Land Use and Conditional Use Permits 2002-2014 

* MET towers, wind 
turbines, solar and 
wireless CUP or 
LUP etc. 
 
** farm winery, ag 
related business, 
farm retreat, etc. 
 
*** kennel, 
shooting preserve, 
non-ag tourism 
 
**** wetland, 
floodplain, mineral 
extraction 

Page 20



ANIMAL AGRICULTURE:  
 

ELEMENT 1: AGRICULTURE 

1. Identify agriculturally related businesses 
and industrial uses that are appropriate for 
the agricultural districts. 

2. Support agriculturally related businesses 
and industrial uses when sited in compatible 
areas that would not create extraneous 
nuisances to adjacent landowners. 

3. Provide appropriate expectations for 
minimizing impacts between industrial 
agricultural businesses and the surrounding 
uses such as landscape buffers and 
setbacks. 

4. Consideration for the location, type, and 
intensity of surrounding existing land uses 
shall be taken into account during the 
process of reviewing permits or applications 
for the establishment of new or expanding 
land uses. 

5. Create performance standards for business 
and industrial uses that primarily serve the 
agricultural community. 

6. Allow the use of minimally intrusive signs to 
advertise and support agriculturally related 
businesses. 

 

 

1. Create performance standards for business 
and industrial uses. 

2. Allow the use of minimally intrusive signs to 
advertise and support agriculturally related 
businesses. 

 

  

AGRICULTURALLY 
RELATED BUSINESS 
OBJECTIVES:  

AGRICULTURALLY 
RELATED BUSINESS 
OBJECTIVES: 

Page 21



Zoning Ordinance Amendment

(WKlIHIU ClXiNlV) Text Amendment(GOOOHUf CTHIKTVlw
Land Use Management

Pursuant to Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance Article 2 Section 3: it shall be unlawful to 
proceed with the change of use, erection, enlarging or structural alteration of any building 
without first procuring the Zoning Administrator's approval and the Building Official's approval 
for a building permit, if applicable.
The first page consists of instructions which should be read carefully before the application 
form is completed. Land Use Management Department (LUM) staff is available to advise you in 
the preparation of this application. Call (651) 385-3104 for further information.

509 W 5th Street Suite 103 
Red Wing, MN 55066

T: 651-385-3104

F: 651-385-3106

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SUBMITTAL:The Zoning Ordinance promotes and protects the public 
health, safety and general welfare of the people of Goodhue 
County. The Zoning Ordinance will assist in the economic 
growth of the County by providing a basis for reasonable and 
orderly residential, commercial and industrial development.; 
and shall encourage farmers, residents and businesses to 
protect the land from erosion, loss of wetlands, lost of water 
quality, and loss of woodlands. To achieve this purpose the 
Zoning Ordinance shall regulate the use of property, and the 
size, design, and siting of buildings that may be constructed 
on a piece of property. Each Zoning District has standards for 
buildings that govern such features like rear yard setbacks, 
front yard setbacks, usable open space, height, and parking. 
No permit shall be issued unless such building or land use is 
designed and arranged to conform to the provisions of the 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance and the adopted 
Building Code. Application for a permit shall be signed by 
the applicant or his authorized agent and filed with the 
Zoning Administrator's office.

A complete application shall include the following materials:
1. Text Amendment Application Form: Completed 

application form fulfilling the requirements of Article 3, 
Section 2: Applications.

2. Additional Information: as it pertains to this request.
3. Application Fees: Fees for such permits shall be pursuant to 

fee schedules and amendments, thereto, as established by 
the County Board. Please refer to the Goodhue County Land 
Use Management Department Fee Schedule available at 
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us or at the Land Use 
Management offices Located in the Government center at 
509 West 5lh Street Suite 103, Red Wing, MN 55066

Some applications may require additional materials not 
listed. Upon review, applications may require other 
information concerning the property or adjoining property 
as determined by the Zoning Administrator and/or Building 
Official. All plans and other exhibits submitted with this 
application will be retained as part of the permanent record 
in this case.

WHAT IS A ZONING TEXT AMENDMENT?
The County Board may issue an amendment to the Zoning 
District or Zoning Map to reflect changes in conditions in the 
County or to correct mistakes in the Ordinance or 
Map.
Any text within the Ordinances governed by the Land Use 
Management Division can be amended, unless otherwise 
stated. State and Federal laws may require specific 
regulations.

Applicant or representative is encouraged to attend the 
scheduled public hearings

To file your Zoning Text Amendment application, please call 
(651) 385-3104 in advance to schedule an intake appointment. At 
your scheduled appointment with a staff planner, please bring the 
application completed to the best of your ability with all required 
materials. Receipt of this application and required materials by 
the LUM Department serves to open a Planning file for the 
proposed project. At that time, the planner assigned will review 
for completeness to Ordinances and Minnesota Statue 15.99 or 
whether additional information is required. The necessary County 
permits shall be issued when they are deemed in compliance with 
the above items.

WHO MAY INITIATE AMENDMENTS?
The proposal to amend, extend, or add to the regulation of 
the Zoning Ordinance shall be filed to the Zoning 
Administrator. The application can be filed by a petition from 
residents, recommendations from the PAC, or by action from 
the County Board. (Article 3, Section 2, Subdl.).

Page 1 of 27



Zoning Ordinance Amendment

$500 reoeip 1 ft da in
APPLICATION FOR

Text Amendment
APPLICANT OR AUTHORIZED AGENTS NAME:

Circle "K" Family Farms and Michael, Yon and Jeff Kohlnhofer
TELEPHONE:APPLICANTS ADDRESS.

35559 Co. 45 Blvd 
Lake City, MN 55041

( 651 ) 764-2282
EMAIL:

yonkohl@hotmail.com

CONTACT FOR PROJECT INFORMATION

Jack Y. Perry □Same as Above

TELEPHONE:ADDRESS:

( 612 ) 977-84972200 IDS Center 
80 South 8th Street 
Minneapolis, MN 55402

EMAIL:

jperry@briggs.com

__ , Section:,
, Section: 24 
, Section:__

□ Amendment to Subdivision Ordinance Article: 
Amendment to Zoning Ordinance Article: 11

□ Amendment to Zoning Ordinance Article:___
□ Other:___________________

1. Stated reason for amendment(s) requested:
See March 6, 2018 letter from Jack Y. Perry to Lisa M. Hanni, enclosed herein.

2. Compatibility of proposed ordinance amendment(s) with the Goodhue County Comprehensive Plan: 
See March 6, 2018 letter from Jack Y. Perry to Lisa M. Hanni, enclosed herein.

3. Provide proposed amended text and statements outlining any perceived effects the proposed 
amendment(s) may have on other areas of the Ordinance:

See March 6, 2018 letter from Jack Y. Perry to Lisa M. Hanni, enclosed herein.

4. Provide any additional information that will assist the Planning Advisory Commission and the County 
Board in reviewing your request:

See March 6, 2018 letter from Jack Y. Perry to Lisa M. Hanni, enclosed herein. The $500 application fee was sent to County on 
March 6, 2018

Applicant’s Affidavit
Under penalty of perjury the following declarations are made:
1. The information presented is true and correct to the best of my knowledge.
2. If I am unable to be jii^sgnl at the meeting where my request is decided, I agree to accept the Notice of Decision by USPS mail.
3. Other information or applications may be required.

Date:Signa —C,

owner or authorized agentPrint name:

Page 2 of 27



2200 IDS Center 
80 South 8th Street, 
Minneapolis, MN 55402 
ore 612-977-8400 
fax 612-977-0650 
url Briggs.com

BRIGGS

Jack Y. Perry 
(612) 977-8497 

jperry@briggs.com

March 6,2018

VIA U.S. MAIL

Lisa M. Hanni
Director, Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center 
509 West Fifth Street 
Red Wing, MN 55066

Petition for an amendment to Article 11 Section 24 ("PRESERVATION OF 
FARMING PRACTICES") of the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance

Re:

Dear Ms. Hanni:

On behalf of Jeff, Mike and Yon Kohlnhofer (Kohlnhofers) and Circle K Family Farms 
(Circle K), this Petition, requests an amendment to Article 11 Section 24 ("PRESERVATION 
OF FARMING PRACTICES") of County's Zoning Ordinance (Ordinance). The legal authority 
underlying, as well as an example for, the requested Ordinance amendment is discussed below.

Besides being consistent with Article 11 Section 24 ("PRESERVATION OF 
FARMING PRACTICES"), the requested Ordinance amendment is, as discussed below, also 
consistent with County's Ordinance — i.e., Article 13 Section 1 ("INTENT") of Article 13 
("CONFINED FEEDLOT REGULATIONS") and Article 1 Section 2 ("PURPOSE") of 
Article 1 ("GENERAL PROVISIONS"). As likewise discussed below, the requested Ordinance 
amendment is, as well, consistent with County's Comprehensive Plan (Plan) — i.e., the Plan's 
"OVERVIEW," "ANIMAL AGRICULTURE OBJECTIVES," "ANIMAL 
AGRICULTURE IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGIES" and "AGRICULTURALLY 
RELATED BUSINESS OBJECTIVE." In sum, Circle K's requested Ordinance amendment 
simply asks County to reaffirm its commitment to the protection of regulatorily-compliant 
agricultural operations from legal action due to their operation.

A. REQUESTED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT

The requested Ordinance amendment is for the passage of the following redlined edits to 
Article 11 Section 24:

SECTION 24. PRESERVATION OF FARMING PRACTICES
It is the declared policy of this County to enhance and encourage agricultural 
operations within the County.

Briggs and Morgan, Professional Association 
Affirmative Action, Equal Opportunity Employer

Page 3 of 27



^ BRIGGS
Lisa M. I lanni 
March 6, 2018 
Page 2

Where non-agricultural land uses extend into agricultural areas or exist side by 
side, agricultural operations may be the subject of, amuijR other leual aclinns, 
private nuisance or negligence complaints that would result in the cessation or 
curtailment of operations. Such actions discourage investments in farm 
improvements to the detriment of adjacent agricultural uses and the economic 
viability of the County's agricultural industry as a whole.

It is the purpose and intent of this section to reduce the loss to the County of its 
agricultural resources by limiting the circumstances under which agricultural 
operations may be considered sued CoiLJimong other leual actions, a nrivatc 
nuisance or negligence.

•AgrritHthural-pr-eduet+BH-that eoinpiied-wilh all Goodhue-County-Qrdinaneer^-slndl 
uot-lw-etninitlered-by-lirts-CoumyuHconstkuting-a-nursaneer

w

Subd. 1. AGRICULTURAL OPERATION. A facility consisting of real 
or personal property used for the production of crops including 
fruit and vegetable production, tree farming, livestock, poultry, 
dairy products, or poultry products, but not a facility primarily 
engaged in processing agricultural products, 
operation shall also include certain farm activities and uses as 
follows: chemical and fertilizer spraying, farm machinery noise, 
extended hours of operation, manure collection, disposal, 
spreading or storing, open storage of machinery, feedlots, odors 
produced from farm animals, crops or products used in farming.

ESTABLISHED DATE OF OPERATION. For the purposes of 
this section, the established date of operation shall be the date on 
which the agricultural operation commenced.

Agricultural

Subd. 2.

SubtL-3r AGRICULTURAL OPKKAT4QN-NQT A NUISANCE, An

ehange-shall-iwGbeeome a private nuremrce-ilrthe-operatknv-was
p

-To-a-e-ond ition-or-injury-whielnFesuhs-iYonMhe-neghgeuLorAt

Page 4 of 27



£ BRIGGS
Lisa M. Hanni 
March 6,2018 
Page 3

operations—eentru py—to—commonly—aeeepted—agrieu Ituml 
praotices.

permits.

Dr

person;

E.------ To an-animal-feedlot facUrty of one-thousond-fhflOO) or

Suhd.3 RIG IIT-TO-L A KM O K I) I IN A N(. K

A.

No property owner shall bring an action(s) of law,
including without limitation claims lor private nuisance 
under Minn. Stat. S 561.01 and common law negUgejAgg, 
against any farming operation, because of such fanning 
activities, as long as such I'anning.aciivity is complying 
with the local. County. Stale...,nnd_ Federal permits.
ordinances, rules, statutes and other regulations which both 
applyJQ aatLaie enforceable against the fanning jpctatiap-

B,

B. PRACTICAL APPLICATION OF THE PROPOSED ORDINANCE
AMENDMENT

The proposed Right-to-Farm Ordinance simply codifies common sense and County's 
already existing commitment to the preservation of agricultural operations. The appropriateness 
of and need for this Ordinance amendment is illustrated by its application to standard "noise" and 
"odor" nuisance and negligence claims against an agricultural operation.

Applied to "noise" claims. A property owner should not be able to bring a 
§ 561.01 "noise" nuisance or "noise" negligence action against a farming operation due to noise 
levels from the farming activity which comply with the state's objective "maximum levels of 
noise," particularly when (1) such levels were statutorily-required to be set by the Minnesota 
Pollution Control Agency (MPCA) so as to avoid being "injurious to human health or welfare . .

1.

Page 5 of 27



£ BRIGGS
Lisa M. Hanni 
March 6, 2018 
Page 4

. or could interfere unreasonably with the enjoyment of life or property" and (2) "[n]o local 
governing unit shall set standards describing the maximum noise levels of sound pressure which 
are more stringent." To allow otherwise, then, is to allow property owners to insist upon an 
undefined subjective standard for "noise" that they alone can describe with a six-person jury 
being asked whether this standard was violated even though the jurors are unlikely to ever get to 
visit the agricultural operation to hear for themselves the noise at issue. See, e.g., Attach. B.

Applied to "odor" claims. A property owner should not be able to bring a 
§561.01 "odor" nuisance or "odor" negligence action against a farming operation due to odor 
levels from the farming activity which comply with the state's "livestock odor" standard for 
"responding to citizen complaints regarding feedlot odor and its hydrogen sulfide component" — 
i.e., the state's ambient air quality standards for hydrogen sulfide, particularly when (1) such 
standards were set by the MPCA to avoid "interfer[ence] with normal activity in healthy and 
sensitive individuals or . , . interfer[ence] with the enjoyment of life or property" and (2) "[n]o 
local governing units shall set standards of air quality which are more stringent." To allow 
otherwise, then, is, like with "noise," to allow property owners to insist upon an undefined 
subjective standard for "livestock odor" that they alone can describe with a six-person jury being 
asked whether this standard was violated even though the jurors are unlikely to ever get to visit 
the agricultural operation to smell for themselves the odor at issue.

2.

C. LEGAL AUTHORITY FOR SUCH AN ENACTMENT

Under Minnesota's private nuisance case law and related jury instruction, a private 
nuisance is determined by (1) "the degree of discomfort by the .slaiulnnls of ordinary people in 
relation to the area where they reside" (Citizens for a Safe Grant v. Lone Oak Sportsmen's Club, 
624 N.W.2d 796, 803 (Minn. App. 2001)) or (2) "the standards of ordinary people in the area in 
which the property is located" (Minn. Pract. Series Vol. 4A, 49 (5th. Ed. 2006)). And, under 
Minnesota's negligence law and related jury instruction, a negligence claim can be proven by 
nothing more than a private nuisance. Wendinger v. Forst Farms, Inc., 662 N.W.2d 546, 550 
(Minn. App. 2003).

Per Mcniam-Webster's Dictionary, "standards" means "something set up and established 
by authority as a rule for the measure of quantity, weight, extent, value, or quality." (Emphasis 
added). And County is, per Minn. Stat. Chps. 375.51 and 394, the "authority" charged with 
enacting the applicable "standards of ordinary people in relation to the area where they reside," 
including such "standards" applicable to private nuisance and negligence claims brought against 
farming operations within County.

More specifically, County's Ordinance, including without limitation Article 11 Section 24 
("PRESERVATION OF FARMING PRACTICES") and Article 13 ("CONFINED 
FEEDLOT REGULATIONS"), can and should define "the standards of ordinary people in 
relation to the area where they reside" (or "in the area in which the property is located") — e.g.,

Page 6 of 27



>> BRIGGS
Lisa M. Hanni 
March 6, 2018 
Page 5

County's "A-l, Agricultural Preservation" and "A-2 Agriculture" zoning districts — in such a 
way as to protect regulatorily-compliant farming operations from such suits. And, to illustrate its 
authority to do so, County could undisputedly impose "standards" for its A-l and A-2 zoning 
districts which altogether prohibit certain incompatible non-agricultural uses — e.g., retail or 
non-farm residential uses — in those zoning districts. As such, County has the authority, as well, 
to enact "standards" in those zoning districts which impose all "lesser included" restrictions 
therein, including the above proposed Right-to-Farm Ordinance.

Because of County's authority under Minn. Stat. Chps. 375,51 and 394 to enact these 
"standards" for "agricultural operations," including feedlots, in its A-l and A-2 zoning districts, 
these "standards" arc clearly not somehow "preempted," Rather, in Blue Earth County Pork 
Producers, Inc. v. County of Blue Earth, 558 N.W.2d 25, 28 (Minn. App, 1997), the Court found 
that the local manure management ordinance was not preempted by state pollution laws because 
the state regulatory scheme explicitly delegated enforcement to localities, stating that local 
governments could impose additional controls upon feedlots. And the above-discussed case law 
has done this very thing. That is, County was, per Chapter 375.51 and 394, explicitly delegated 
to enact its "standards" for permitting farming operations in its A-l and A-2 zoning districts, 
inclusive of the requested amendment thereto, as "the standards of ordinary people in relation to 
the area where they reside" (or "in the area in which the property is located").

Moreover, the Legislature clearly knows how to "preempt" local controls, and it does so 
explicitly. See, e.g., Minn. Stat. § 18B.02 ("Except as specifically provided in this chapter, the 
provisions of this chapter preempt ordinances by local governments that prohibit or regulate any 
matter relating to the legislation, labeling, distribution, sale, handling, use, application, or 
disposal of pesticides" (emphasis added)); Minn. Stat. § 133F.227 ("This section . . . preempts 
local ordinances that are inconsistent with its terms" (emphasis added)); Minn. Stat. § 216G.02, 
subd. 4 ("[t]lie pipeline routing permit supersedes and preempts all zoniim. buildiim. or land use 
rules, regulations, or ordinances" (emphasis added)); Minn. Stat. § 504B.205, subd. 3 ("This 
section preempts any inconsistent local ordinance or rule" (emphasis added)). Yet the 
Legislature failed to so preempt County's enactment of "the standards of ordinary people in 
relation to the area where they reside" (or "in the area in which the property is located"). To the 
contrary, the Legislature authorized County under Chapters 375.51 and 394 to enact just such 
"standards."

D. AN EXAMPLE FOR SUCH AN ENACTMENT

In 2008, Todd County enacted a similar Right-to-Farm Ordinance. Attach. A. Todd 
County is, however, in the process of slightly amending its Right-to-Farm Ordinance (Attach, D) 
so that, like Kohlnhofers and Circle K's proposed amendment here, it satisfies the Todd County 
District Court's very discrete issues with its initial version (Attach. E). And Todd County is 
amending its Right-to-Farm Ordinance because it saw firsthand the resulting problems which 
could arise for a state-of-the-art and fully-compliant agricultural operation.

Page 7 of 27



^ BRIGGS
Lisa M. Hanni 
March 6,2018 
Page 6

In Todd County, a group of neighbors living in the four closest residences to a new 1,412 
AU sow facility filed and prosecuted a baseless multi-year private odor nuisance and negligence 
case brought against the facility. Built in 2012, this facility cost $10 million, plus $1.6 million in 
annual local labor and feed thereafter. Sponsored by two national anti-feedlot organizations (i.e., 
Humane Society of the United States (HSUS) and Socially Responsible Agricultural Project 
(SRAP)), the neighbors brought this suit even though the facility undisputedly (1) employed the 
industry's best odor mitigation measures, (2) satisfied MPCA's rigorous environmental review, 
inclusive of odor modeling, and (3) complied with all regulatory requirements, including 
compliance with, as shown through odor modeling and air emissions monitoring, both (a) the 
OFFSET odor evaluation model's requirements and (b) Minn. Stat. § 116,0713's "LIVESTOCK 
ODOR" standards
under Minn. R. 7009.0080 at the property boundaries. And, even though the facility prevailed 
following a two-week jury trial, Todd County has recognized that no one else would 
prospectively invest in such a farming operation in Todd County if it does not revise its Right-to- 
Farm Ordinance to protect animal agriculture from such scenarios.

As proven by this lawsuit, Todd County's concern was, more specifically, that, per Minn. 
Slat. § 561.01 as interpreted by Wendinger, 662 N,W.2d at 550, neighborhood opponents could 
enforce, through private odor nuisance/negligence claims, an unspecified subjective "livestock 
odor" standard which is more stringent than that which could be enforced by MPCA or any other 
local regulatory unit. These neighbors could, for example, enforce this amorphous stricter 
"livestock odor" standard even though the legislatively-prescribed "livestock odor" standards 
which MPCA is, per Minn. Stat. § 116.0713(a) (1997), required to (i.e., "must") enforce were, 
per Minn. R. 7009.0080, "primary standards" for hydrogen sulfide. And "primary standards" are, 
per Minn. R. 7009.0010, subp. 2, "established to protect the public health from adverse effects . . 
. that are likely [(1)] to interfere with normal activity in healthy or sensitive individuals or [(2)] 
to interfere unreasonably with the enjoyment of life or property" (a/k/a nuisance). Not 
surprisingly, then, this result is contrary to the legislative purpose for the legislatively-prescribed 
"livestock odor" standard, which was, as advocated by concerned citizens, to establish objective 
standards which were to be enforced by MPCA, Another concern of Todd County was that these 
neighbors could enforce, through private odor nuisance/negligence claims, this amorphous 
stricter "livestock odor" standard even during the feedlots' Minn. Stat. § 116.0713(b)-(d) (2000) 
and Minn. R, 7020.2002-prescribed 21-day "exemption" from MPCA's enforcement of these 
"primary standards" for "livestock odor" during their manure "pump out" time period. 
Strikingly, however, the 21-day "exemption" was enacted in 2000 because no feedlot could 
otherwise comply with the legislatively-prescribed "livestock odor" standard during the once-a- 
year manure "pump out." In other words, the statutory purposes for Minn. Stat. § 116.0713(a) 
(1997) and Minn. Stat. § 116.0713(b)-(d) (2000) were contravened by neighborhood opponents 
being able to enforce, through private odor nuisance/negligence claims, an unspecified subjective 
"livestock odor" which is more stringent than that which could be enforced by MPCA.

V

i.e., the state ambient air quality standards for hydrogen sulfide (H2S)

Page 8 of 27



BRIGGS
Lisa M. Hanni 
March 6, 2018 
Page 7

In order to encourage agriculture investment within its boundaries, Todd County is 
revising its Right-to-Farm Ordinance, Yet, in order to simultaneously protect its neighbors from 
unreasonable impacts, Todd County's proposed revised Right-to-Farm Ordinance only protects 
regulatorily-compliant farming operations in its agricultural preservation zoning districts from 
such actions.

E. CONSISTENCY WITH THE ORDINANCE

Beyond Article 11 Section 24 ("PRESERVATION OF FARMING PRACTICES"), 
this requested Ordinance amendment is consistent with Article 13 Section 1 ("INTENT"), 
Article 13 Section 1 provides, in full, as follows:

SECTION 1. INTENT

An adeouate supply of healthy livestock, poultry, and other animals is essential to
the wellbcint’ of Goodhue County citizens and the State of Minnesota. These 
domesticated animals provide our daily source of meat, milk, eggs and fiber. 
Their efficient, economic production must be the concern of all consumers if we 
are to have a continued abundance of high-quality, wholesome food and fiber at 
reasonable prices.

Through this and other ordinances, Goodhue County supports conservation efforts 
and environmentally safe land use practices. Livestock, poultry and other animals 
produce manure which may, where improperly stored, transported, or disposed, 
have a negative affect [sic] on the environment. When animal manure adds to 
surface water, groundwater, long term air pollution or land pollution in the 
county, it must be controlled.

The lollowint’ retaliations for the control of livestock, poultry, and other animal
feedlot and manure application has been promuluaicd to provide protection
auninsl pollution caused by manure from domesticated animals. However, these 
rules recognize that animal manure provides beneficial qualities to the soil and to 
the production of agriculture crops,

These rules comply with the policy and purpose of the state of Minnesota in 
regard to the control of pollution as set forth in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 115 
and 116. It has been our experience that residential and agricultural uses of land 
can be incompatible. These feedlot controls will regulate the uses and 
development of land in Goodhue County which may adversely alTccl the health, 
safety, and aencnil welfare of (he public.

No person shall permit or allow their land or property under their control to be 
used for any confined feedlots, and no animal manure from any confined feedlot

Page 9 of 27



BRIGGS
Lisa M. Hanni 
March 6,2018 
Page 8

shall be disposed of within the County of Goodhue, except al an operation which 
has been approved in accordance with the provisions of this Article.

All feedlots within Goodhue County shall comply with minimum standards set
forth within MPCA Chapter 7020 (herein referred to as MPCA 70201 rules of this
Ordinance.

OFFSET Odor Modeling references in this Article are based on the model 
developed or modified by the University of Minnesota Department of Bio systems 
and Agricultural Engineering.

(Bold in original; underlining added).

The requested Ordinance amendment is also consistent with Article 1, Section 2 
("PURPOSE") of the Ordinance. Article 1 Section 2 provides, in full, as follows:

SECTION 2. PURPOSE

The purpose of this Ordinance is to promote and protect the public health, safety 
and general welfare of the people of Goodhue County. This Ordinance will 
protect and preserve prime agricultural land by limiting the density of residential
development in these areas. This Ordinance will assist in the economic urowtli of
the County by providing a basis for reasonable and orderly residential, 
commercial and industrial development. At the same time, this Ordinance shall 
encourage farmers, residents and businesses to protect the land from erosion, loss 
of wetlands, loss of water quality, and loss of woodlands.

(Bold in original; underlining added).

F. CONSISTENCY WITH THE PLAN

County's recently-enacted Plan provides several protections for animal agriculture. As 
part of its "OVERVIEW," the Plan provides as follows:

Agricultural zoning districts have been established to maintain and preserve 
agricultural land. This Plan classifies agricultural land into three general 
categories: plant agriculture, animal agriculture and agricultural related business.
This element focuses on assisting the competitiveness of our agricultural 
enterprises and protecting the farmland base that is key to a thriving agricultural
economy.

The success of agriculture in Goodhue County lies in the creativity and drive of 
our farmers. The nature of agriculture has evolved over the years, but changes

Page 10 of 27



^ BRIGGS
Lisa M. Hanni 
March 6, 2018 
Page 9

have become even more pronounced recently. Farmers are becoming increasingly 
entrepreneurial and the line between agriculture and manufacturing, tourism, and 
other business is diminishing.

Plan at 8 (bold in original; underlining added).

More specifically, the Plan's five "ANIMAL AGRICULTURE OBJECTIVES" are as
follows;

Support and encourage larminn activities so farmers can continue to
provi dc an adequate supplv of healthy livestock.

Support agricultural industries that are directly and indirectly related to 
animal agriculture such as veterinarian services, crop advisory services, 
livestock sales and auction services.

2.

Encourage the use of best management practices for animal and crop 
agricultural practices.

Continue to allow for agricultural tourism opportunities to allow 
diversification of the agricultural economy.

Support the growth of animal agriculture in an environmentally friendly
manner.

3.

4.

5.

Id. at 18 (bold in original; underlining added).

The Plan's five "ANIMAL AGRICULTURE IMPLEMENTATIONS STRATEGIES"
are as follows:

The University of Minnesota’s odor OFFSET tool will be used when
considering new fccdlols and feedlol expansion requests.

1.

Support and promote best management animal farming practices in order
to protect the health, safety, welfare of the operation as well as
surrounding properties,

Work with Soil and Water Conservation District to enforce the designated 
feedlot program in accordance with MN Rules 7020.

Encourage best practices for waste handling, manure spreading, pest 
control, fertilizer application, and erosion control.

2.

3.

4.

Page 11 of 27



>> BRIGGS
Lisa M. Hanni 
March 6,2018 
Page 10

Evaluate feedlots and feed lot rouislmlion requirements to ensure they are 
adtlrcssinu health, safety, and welfare concerns for adjacent landowners.
water quality, and soil health.

5,

Id. at 19 (bold in original; underlining added).

And the Plan's six "AGRICULTURALLY RELATED BUSINESS OBJECTIVES1'
are as follows:

Identify agriculturally related businesses and industrial uses that are 
appropriate for the agricultural districts.

Support auriculmrally related business and industrial uses when sited in
compatible areas that would not create extraneous nuisances to adjacent
landowners.

I.

2.

Provide appropriate expectations for minimizing impacts between
industrial agricultural businesses and the surrounding uses such as
landscape buffers and setbacks.

Consideration for the location, type and intensity of surrounding existing
land uses shall he taken into account during the process of reviewing
permits or applications for the establishment of new or expanding land
uses.

3,

4.

Create performance standards for business and industrial uses that
primarily serve the auricultural community.

Allow the use of minimally intrusive signs to advertise and support 
agriculturally related businesses.

Id. at 21 (bold in original; underlining added).

With this requested Ordinance amendment, County has the opportunity to further 
reinforce its support for regulatory-compliant farming operations. Kohlnhofers and Circle K, 
together with the rest of County's sizeable animal agriculture industry, respectfully requests that 
County seize upon this opportunity with the enactment of its Right-to-Farm Ordinance.

5.

6,

Page 12 of 27



BRIGGS
Lisa IVM. I Ianni 
March 6,2018 
Page 11

JYP
Enclosure: $500 application fee 
Attachments

Attach. A: 2008 Todd County's Right-to-Farm Ordinance 
Attach. B: 2/9/16 Order (re: Noise)
Attach. C: December 6, 2017 Order (re: Right-to-Farm Ordinance)
Attach. D: 2018 Todd County's (proposed) Revised Right-to-Farm Ordinance
Jeff Kohlnhofer, Circle K Family Farms
Mike Kohlnhofer, Circle K Family Farms
Yon Kohlnhofer, Circle K Family Farms
Dr. Mark FitzSimmons, Protein Sources
Dr, Charles Gantzer, Barr Engineering
David Preisler, Minnesota Pork Board
Maren F. Grier, Briggs and Morgan, P.A.

cc:

10506760vl3

Page 13 of 27



(xii) All recreational vehicle park projects shall be equipped with at leas tone (1) 
central toilet, bathing, and laundry building which meets or exceeds the 
requirements of the Minnesota Department of Health, except that in primitive 
tent camping areas, only toilet facilities shall be required as per the Minnesota 
Department of Health.

Section 9.11
A. Policy - An efficient and profitable livestock industry is an economic benefit to Todd

County and to the State of Minnesota. It provides a value-added opportuni ty to our crop 
based agriculture and creates service industries, which provide employment and further 
economic activity. An efficient industry also produces high quality food and fiber for 
consumers at reasonable prices. The wastes produced in livestock production have the 
potential, when improperly stored, transported or disposed, to contribute to air, surface 
water, and ground water pollution. When properly utilized such wastes contribute to soil 
fertility and structure and enhance efficient crop production. The following section has 
been promulgated to reduce risk of pollution of natural resources from feedlots.

B. Todd County is an MPCA delegated Feedlot County.
C. This section regulates feedlots as well as storage and land application of animal waste.

All existing and future feedlots in Todd County shall comply with the standards set 
forth within the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency (MPCA) Chapter 7020 rules and 
updates, and this Ordinance.

D. Within the agricultural preservation districts, the construction, expansion and operation of
feedlots and other agricultural uses are permitted or permitted by conditional uses.

E. There will be from time to time, sights, sounds and smells associated with the operation
of farming. No property owner shall bring action of Law against any farming operation, 
because of such farming activities, as long as such farming activity complies with State, 
Federal or County regulations.

F. More restrictive standards. Minnesota Rules Chapter 7020 are hereby modified by the
following more restrictive standards.

G. The County Board may appoint a Feedlot Officers) as are necessary and to designate
their power and duties within the limits of this section.

H. A land use permit shall be required for all expansions of buildings of an existing feedlot
that does not increase the animal unit numbers.

I. A land use permit with a feedlot inspection is required for all expansions of buildings or
lots that increase animal unit numbers of existing registered feedlots of more than 10 
animal units but less than 300 animal units. An Interim Permit may be required to 
correct environment hazards on feedlots.

J. Registration. An animal feedlot capable of holding ten (10) or more animal units, or a
manure storage area capable of holding the manure produced by 10 or more animal 
units is required to register with the County every four (4) years.

Feedlots.

Todd County Planning and Zoning Ordinance 
Updated 20171017

Page IX: 131
Attachment A

Page 14 of 27



K. Conditional Use Permit - Expansion of animal unit numbers to existing feedlots located
within 300 feet of any river class or within 1,000 feet of any lake class may be approved 
if they do not exceed 1,000 animal units and they do not further encroach into the 
riparian setback or bluff impact zone.

L. The owner of a proposed or existing animal feedlot of over 300 animal units in the
Agricultural District shall make an application to the County for a Construction Short 
Form Permit when any of the following conditions exist:
(i) A new feedlot is proposed where a feedlot did not previously exist;

Expansion of an existing feedlot beyond registered animal units;
(iii) Any change in species on an existing animal feedlot or facility;
(iv) A feedlot is to be restocked after being abandoned for five (5) or more years;
(v) An inspection reveals that the feedlot is creating a potential pollution hazard and 

due process is observed by the authorized entity Department and provides the 
ability to correct the infraction as listed in MPCA regulations;

Application for conditional use permit;
(vii) A National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit application 

is required under State or Federal rules and regulations (over 1,000 animal units 
of manure is produced on the farm);

(viii) Other actions as specified in the Ordinance.
M. Feedlot setbacks and separations -feedlot setbacks. All setbacks of this section shall

apply within the county and shall not cross county lines, The setback standards of the 
county where the feedlot is located shall apply. No new feedlot shall hereafter be 
erected within the following distances:

(ii)

(vi)

School, Church, 
Park, or 
Airport*

Public
Drainage
Ditch*

Municipal Limits 
or Municipal 
Growth 
Boundaries*

New Feedlot or 
Manure Storage 
Area

Animal
Units

Quarter (1/4) 
mile

Half (1/2) mile 300 feet10-100Tier I

Half (1/2) mileOne (1) mile 300 feetTier II 101-300
Half (1/2) mile300 feetOne (1) mileOver 300Tier III

* All setbacks are reciprocal in nature

N. All application of animal waste shall comply with all setbacks of Minnesota Statutes
Chapter 7020, to minimize odor nuisance, potential point and non-point pollution.

O. Peiformance Standards:
(i) All new liquid manure storage structures must have a minimum of twelve (12) 

months of storage capacity.

Todd County Planning and Zoning Ordinance 
Updated 20171017

Page IX: 132
Attachment A

Page 15 of 27



All expansions of feedlots with a liquid manure handling system must have a 
liquid storage capacity to accommodate the increase in animal units. The plans 
for this expansion must be provided to the Department prior to any construction 
taking place, and must be completed within two years of the date that the permit 
was issued. This rule is not intended to be applied to any expansion that utilizes a 
solid manure handling system.

(iii) No open-air swine or poultry liquid manure storage basins will be allowed.
All liquid manure storage basins must be fenced to Natural Resources 
Conservation Service (NRCS) specifications.

Manure application agreements must be for at least four years for all expansions 
or new construction.

(vi) All new manure storage structures (earthen basins, slurry stores, concrete manure 
storage, runoff ponds, sediment ponds or other similar structures) shall be a 
minimum of 300 feet from any property line (including a road right-of-way) 
unless the manure storage structure is being installed to mitigate a pollution 
hazard and meeting the 300 foot setback is not feasible or is impractical. In no 
case shall a new manure storage structure be located within the minimum 
building setback for the zoning district where it is located.

P. For parcels of land greater than 1 acre in shoreland or “R” zoning.
1. Limited to up to 25 Chickens (no other fowl) and/ 20 rabbits
2. Shelter, fencing, cages must be provided - no free range animals.
3. Roosters are prohibited
4. All litter must be garden applied and tilled or removed from property
5. Property owner must maintain a Livestock Registration with Todd County

Q. For parcels located in shoreland zoning that have historic feedlot use.
1. Owner must maintain Livestock Registration with Todd County.
2. May register for up to 9.9 AU maximum animal units on parcel.
3. Todd County will require plans and specifications for review prior to approval 
of registration verifying setbacks, potential runoff, wetlands, etc..
4. Final determination is made by Planning and Zoning Administrator

R. A violation of this section shall constitute a misdemeanor and be processed according
to the procedures established in Article X.

Section 9.12 Mining and Extraction Use.
A. Mining & extraction permits. Activities permitted include washing, crushing,

screening, and stockpiling of soil, rock, sand, gravel, concrete, and asphalt, removal of 
barrow material, temporary administrative office structures that will not be present after 
the permit expires, and equipment maintenance activities under the following 
conditions:
(i) Permitee signatures. Both the landowner and the contractor shall sign the 

application and be responsible for meeting the conditions of llie permit.

Todd County Planning and Zoning Ordinance 
Updated 20171017

(ii)

(iv)

(v)

Page IX: 133
Attachment A

Page 16 of 27



Electronically Servad 
2/9/2016 9:65:43 AM 
Sodtt Ccunty, MN

STATE OF MINNESOTA DISTRICT COURT

COUNTY OF TODD SEVENTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT

Travis Winter, Aimee Goodwin, Corey 
Goodwin, Joel Walsh, Amy Walsh, Katrina 
Downes, Russell Anderson,

Court File No, 77-CV-14-933

Plaintiffs,

vs,

Gourley Premium Pork, L.C., d/b/a Gourley 
Brothers and Gourley Bros. Premium Pork; 
and Protein Sources, LLP and Protein Sources 
Milling, LLC; and John Doe,

Defendants,

ORDER

This matter came on for hearing before District Court Judge Douglas P. Anderson on 
November 20, 2015, at the Todd County Courthouse in Long Prairie, Minnesota, pursuant to 
Defendants’ motion for summary judgment. Appearances were noted in the record.

Based on the Hies, records and proceedings herein,

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED:

Defendants’ motion for dismissal of Plaintiff Downes’ claims for lack of standing 
is denied.

I,

Plaintiffs Winter’s and Goodwin’s claims are limited to nuisance and/or negligence 
damages incurred while they resided at their respective residences.

Plaintiffs Winters and Goodwin shall not be allowed to offer evidence of adverse 
health impacts caused by Defendants operation of the facility.

Defendants’ motion for summary judgment on Plaintiffs’ nuisance claim is granted 
in part and denied in part, The motion is granted as to claims based on light and 
noise and denied as to claims based on odors.

2.

3.

4.

Defendants’ motion for summary judgment on Plaintiffs’ negligence claim is 
granted in part and denied in part. The motion is granted as to claims based on light 
and noise and denied as to claims based on odors.

5.

6. Defendants’ motion for certification is denied.

I Attachment B

Page 17 of 27



cited by Defendants are relevant, for all of them deal with the limits ofMPCA (or local) actions 

involving regulated (and therefore measurable) standards for noise or air emissions.

Light and noise nuisance

Fourteen 250-watt lights are stationed on fourteen-foot tall poles around the perimeter of the facility 

to provide illumination for the perimeter road as well as for security, They are light activated, turning on at 

nightfall and off at daylight.

Light illumination can be objectively measured in foot candles. Defendants conducted such 

measurements (oil the evening of October 13, 2015), See Def. Ex, 112. The testing indicated that there is 

illumination from the lights up to a distance of 120 feet from the facility; at any point further there is no 

illumination, In other words, the facility’s lights cannot cause a shadow at a distance of more than 120 feet,

Plaintiffs have presented no facts or expert opinions that dispute this finding. The nearest neighbor is 1,320

feet from the facility.

With respect to Plaintiffs’ noise-related nuisance claims, Plaintiffs allege that (1) three feed

trucks bring feed to the facility each week; (2) one truck each weeks takes pigs from the facility; (3)

exhaust fans at the facility run continuously; (4) a skid steer is operated daily outside the facility from 

early morning until late evening; (5) when pigs are removed from the facility (once a week), they make

squealing noises; and (5) that there is a banging or clanging of the feed trucks as facility workers unload

the feed.

None of the noises of which Plaintiffs complain are other than those usually and customarily

associated with farming operations, albeit magnified here because of the size of the operation. No

evidence has been presented that the noise generated from the facility exceeds what should be expected

odor to a measured concentration across a diverse population. As a result, it is not possible to adopt a state 
ambient air quality odor standard. Despite this, odors can be a source of private or public nuisance." Def. Ex. 
137 (emphasis added).

The “Odor Policy” also states that "In some limited circumstances, however, a facility that reduces its 
emissions of certain chemicals may also reduce neighborhood odor, In these rare cases, the MPCA may be 
able to use odor measurement as a surrogate for specific chemical concentrations." Uef. Kx. 137 (emphasis 
added). The MPCA’s references to “limited circumstances,” “rare cases,” and the modal verb “might” indicate 
that, as a general rule, hydrogen sulfide is a legislatively established surrogate for swine odor.

9 Attachment B

Page 18 of 27



in an agriculturally zoned area.

The state has established maximum noise levels for various land use activities {see Minn. R.

7030.0020, et. saq.). Specifically, for agricultural end related activities (noise area classification 3),

noise levels may not, day or night, exceed 80 decibels for more than six minutes or 75 decibels for more

than 30 minutes of each hour. Minn, R, 7030.0040, 7030.0050. The only testing conducted at the

facility (the “Skoglund Report,” Def, Ex, 111) indicates that noise levels, projected to the nearest

residences, did not exceed 40 decibels—approximately sixteen times less than the state standard for

such areas. Therefore, the only evidence before the court is that Defendants’ have not come close to

exceeding those levels.

In short, there is an objective, scientific means by which to measure sound, and that is in

decibels. The sounds of which Plaintiffs complain are regular, consistent and easily measured. 

Defendants’ measurements show compliance with the state-regulated noise standards for agricultural

activities. Plaintiffs, on the other hand, have conducting no testing.

For an interference with the enjoyment of life or property to constitute a nuisance, it must be

material and substantial, Citizens for a Safe Grant v. Lone Oak Sportsmen's Club, Inc., 624 N.W.2d

796, 803 (Minn. Ct. App. 2001), and a fact finder is to measure the degree of discomfort by the

standards of ordinary people in relation to the area where they reside. Id. Under the circumstances, the

court finds, as a matter of law, that the light and noise emitted from the facility do not cause a

substantia! and material interference wilh Plaintiffs’ enjoyment of their properties and therefore to

exclude at trial evidence of excessive light or noise as a basis for Plaintiffs’ nuisance claim.

Negligence claim

There is deposition testimony that Defendants left “dead animals laying [sic] out in the hot sun,

bloating up, all day long clearly visible from the road,” and that on several occasions Defendants

garbage blew across the facility' property and ended up on their neighbors’ land. See Pi. Opp, Mot.

to Attachment B

Page 19 of 27



Electronically Served 
12/6/2017 4:17 PM 
Todd Cainty, MN

77-CV-14-933

STATE OF MINNESOTA DISTRICT COURT

COUNTY OF TODD SEVENTH JUDICIAE DISTRICT

Travis Winter, Aimec Goodwin, Corey 
Goodwin, Joel Walsh, Amy Walsh, Katrina 
Downes, Russell Anderson,

Court File No. 77-CV-14-933

jj rGTTTT
I, U bzC-SMIl

[’Ian,(ills ■UWvDvs.

PGourlcy Premium Pork, L.C., d/b/aCourley 
Brothers and Gourlcy Bros. Premium Pork; 
and Protein Sources, LLP and Protein Sources 
Milling, LLC; and John Doe,

:
| IjStMTCWKI• It#I,.-,.,:v,w

Defendants,

ORDER ON FINAL JURY INSTRUCTIONS AND SPECIAL VERDICT FORM

'Phis matter came on for trial before District Court Judge Douglas P, Anderson on 
December 4, 201 7 at the Todd County Courthouse in Long Prairie, Minnesota. Appearances 
were noted in the record.

Rased on the Files, records and proceedings herein,

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED:

Defendants’ requested inclusion of Todd County’s R ight to Farm Ordinance is 
DENIED.

t.

Defendants’ requested revision lo this Court’s private nuisance instruction is 
DENIED.

7

Defendants’ requested removal of the instruction to determine damages even 
without a determination of liability is DENIED,

Defendants’ requested revision lo this Court’s instruction on allowable items of 
damages is DENIED.

Defendants’ requested revisions to the recoverable damage period for (1) Aitncc 
and Corey Goodwin and (2) Russell Anderson, Kairina Downes, and Joel Walsh 
is GRANTED.

3.

4.

5.

Defendants’ requested revision of this Court’s proposed jury instructions to 
relied Minn. Slat. § 116.0713’s limitation on claims based upon odor nuisance 
is DENIED, at this lime,

6:,

J

Attachment C

Page 20 of 27



77-CV-14-933

Defendants’ requested revision to the special verdict form to conform to tile 
requested revised jury instructions is DENIED,

Defendants’ request to submit one damage question for each of the 2 households, 
thal is, (1) Aimee and Corey Goodwin and (2) Russeil Anderson and Katrina 
Downes is DENIED,

7.

B.

The attached Memorandum is made a pan of this Order,9,

Dated December 6,2017, BY THE COURT:

Douglas P. Anderson 
Judge of District Court

2

Attachment C

Page 21 of 27



77-CV-14-933

MEMORANDUM

Tho dales have all been corrected.

('oiiil)iiiini’ (1) Ainn:e Goodwin nnd Corey Goodwin mnl (2) Russell Audoson and Kiuriun

Downes

The court declines to combine spouses or household occupants in the same damage

question. The occupants have different factual situations. For example, Corey Goodwin worked 

out of the home during the daytime hours, and Aimee Goodwin did not, Katrina Downes worked

out of the home as well, and Russell Anderson did not. The alleged exposure to the facility is

different. Additionally, Downes and Anderson me granddaughter/grandfather and allocating a

single damage award between the two of them would not be as simple as allocating a damage

award between hushand and wile.

The Riulil to farm Ordinance

The Right to l-’arm Ordinance instruction will not he given. Section 9,11 E of the Todd

County Ordinance provides that no action of law against a farming operation, because of such

farming activities, may be brought as long as such farming activity comply with state, federal or

county regulations.

The ordinance is arguably incorrect. The last phrase is written in the disjunctive, No suit can

be commenced as long as the farming activity complies with state, federal or county regulations.

The way it is written, if a farming operation complied with state regulations but not county

regulations, it would still be exempt from litigation (and vice-versa). As the court has stated, an

activity can have all the appropriate permits and still be operated negligently or as a nuisance. In

fact, lliu facility in question was granted a conditional use permit (GUP) predicated on the lad

tlml the facility would he operated consistently with the conditions stated at the. time ihc CUP

3

Attachment C

Page 22 of 27



77-CV-14-933

was granted, Additionally, there are periodic compliance checks and reviews as noted by 

Defendants. Because permits are initially granted, it does not mean that the facility is forever 

barred from litigation if it ceases to be operated in compliance with the regulations or if it 

otherwise engages in conduct that can subject it to litigation. The court orally gave the parties 3 

examples of why section E is incorrect. First, Todd County has no animal disposal regulations, 

but defendants must comply with these regulations. Second, Todd County has no hydrogen

sulfide standard, yet defendants must comply with these standards set by the state. Third, Todd

County has no grace period for exceeding air emissions as docs Minnesota statute 116.0713, yet

that statute applies to the defendants’ facility, Read literally, the Gourlcy facility would be

exempt from suit under section E if it complied with just the Todd County’s regulations, and it

would nol have to comply with state and federal regulations. Besides being written in the

conjunctive, Section E should probably require compliance with rules, regulations, and statutes;

not just regulations. The term “regulalion” is not defined in the Todd Cuimly urdinancc either,

Defendants can certainly bring forth Section 9.11 of the zoning ordinance to support the

underlying premise of the Todd County Ordinance, However, it is a jury question whether or nol

the facility is being operated in compliance with state, federal, and county regulations, This

would include compliance with state and federal laws which include laws which allow for

nuisance claims and negligence claims,

I instruction on Livestock Odor under Minn. Slat. $ 116.0713

If Plaintiffs claim that Defendants exceed the state ambient air quality standards during

manure removal, the court would give, as an instruction, Minn, Star, § 116.0713(c). Even though 

there would be no objective evidence that Defendants have exceeded slate ambient air quality 

standards for hydrogen sulfide, they would still be entitled to an instruction that the usual and

A

Attachment C

Page 23 of 27



77-CV-14-933

customary odors affiliated with the operation could be, pursuant to the statute, exceed (or 

increase) for the cumulative period of 21 days for the removal process under the statute.

i ,1 A

D,P,A.

b

Attachment C

Page 24 of 27



Section 9.11 Feedlots.
A. Policy - An efficient and profitable livestock industry is an economic benefit to Todd 

County and to the State of Minnesota. It provides a value-added opportunity to our crop 
based agriculture and creates service industries, which provide employment and further 
economic activity. An efficient industry also produces high quality food and fiber for 
consumers at reasonable prices. The wastes produced in livestock production have the 
potential, when improperly stored, transported or disposed, to contribute to air, surface 
water, and ground water pollution, When properly utilized such wastes contribute to soil 
fertility and structure and enhance efficient crop production. The following section has 
been promulgated to reduce risk of pollution of natural resources from fccdlois.

B. Todd County is an MPCA delegated Feedlot County,
C. This section regulates feedlots as well as storage and land application of animal 

waste. All existing and future feedlots in Todd County shall comply with the 
standards set Forth within the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency (MPCA) Chapter 
7020 rules and updates, and this Ordinance,

D. Within the agricultural-preservation districts, the construct ion, expansion and operation 
of feedlots and other agricultural uses are permitted or permitted by conditional uses.

E. There will be from time to time, sights, sounds and smells associated with the operation
of farming, No property owner shall bring an action(s) of law, including .without 
lltiiiimion claims for priviuejuiis.tmcy under Minn. SinUJCffiai niuLccjDimpikluw 
ncaliaonoc. against any farming operation, because of such farming activities, os long 
as such farming activity is complying with the local. County. State, and Federal or

pen

F. More restrictive standards Minnesota Rules Chapter 7020 arc hereby modified by the
following more restrictive standards,

G. The County Board may appoint a Feedlot Offitcer(s) as are necessary and La 
designate their power and duties within the limits of this section.

H. A land use permit shall be required for all expansions of buildings of an existing 
feedlot ill at does not increase the animal unit numbers,

I. A land use permit with a feedlot inspection is required for all expansions of buildings or
lots that increase animal unit numbers of existing registered feedlots of more than 10 
animal units but less Ilian 300 animal units. An Interim Permit may bo required to 
correct environment hazards on feedlots,

J. Registration, Ail animal feedlot capable of holding ten (10) or mure animal units, or a
manure storage urea capable of holding the manure produced by 10 or more animal 
units is required to register with the County every four (4) years.

Todd County Planning and Zoning Ordinance 
Updated 20170103 Page IX: 131

Attachment D

Page 25 of 27



K, Conditional IJac Permit - Expansion of animal unit numbers to existing feedlots located
wltliin 300 feet of any river class or within 1,000 feet of any lake class may be approved 
if they do not exceed 1,000 animal units and they do not further encroach into the 
riparian setback or bluff impact zone,

L, The owner of a proposed or existing animal feedlot of over 300 animal units in the
Agricultural District shall make an application to the County for a Construction 
Short Form Permit when any of the following conditions exist:
(i) A new feedlot is proposed where a feedlot did not previously exist;
(ii) Expansion of an existing feedlot boyond registered animal uniis;
(iii) Any change in species on an existing animal feedlot or facility;
(iv) A lbedlol is to be restocked after being abandoned for five (5) or more years;
(v) Ati inspection reveals that the feedlot is creating a potential pollution hazard 

and due process is observed by the authorized entity Department and provides 
the ability to correct the infraction as listed in MPCA regulations;

(vi) Application for conditional use permit;
(vii) A National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit application 

is required undor State or Federal rules and regulations (over 1.000 animal units 
of manure is produced on the farm);

(viii) Other actions as specified in the Ordinance.
M, Feedlot. setbacks and separations -feedlot setbacks, All setbacks of this section shall

apply within the county and shall not cross county lines. The setback standards of the 
county where the feedlot is located shall apply, No now foedlot shall hereafter bo 
erected within the following distances:

Public
Drainage
Ditch5"

Animal
Units

School, 
Church, 
Park, or 
Airport* 
Quarter (1/4) 
mile

Municipal Limits 
or Municipal 
Crowth 
Boundaries*
Half (i/2) mile

New Feedlot or 
Manure Storage 
Area

Tier I 300 feet10-100

Half (1/2) mile 
Half (1/2) mile

One (1) mileTier II 101-300 300 feet 
300 feetOver 300 One (1) mile 

* All setbacks are reciprocal in nature
Tier III

N. All application of animal waste shall comply with all setbacks of Minnesota Statutes 
Chapter 7020, to minimize odor nuisance, potential point and non-point pollution. 0. 
Performance Standards:

(i) All new liquid manure storage structures must have a minimum of twelve 
(12) months of storage capacity.

Todd County Planning and Zoning Ordinance 
Updated 20170103 Page IX: 132

Attachment D

Page 26 of 27



(ii) All expansions of feedlots with a liquid manure handling system must have a 
liquid storage capacity to accommodate the increase in animal units, The plans for 
this expansion must be provided to the Department prior to any construction 
(aldng place, and must be completed within two years of the date that the permit 
was issued, This rule is not intended to be applied to any expansion that utilizes a 
solid manure handling system,

(iii) No open-air swine or poultry liquid manure storage basins will be allowed,
(iv) All liquid manure storage basins must be fenoed to Natural 

Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) specifications.
(v) Manure application agreements must be for at least four years for all expansions 

or ucw construction.
(vi) All new manure storage structures (earthen basins, slurry stores, concrete manure 

storage, runoff ponds, sediment ponds or other similar structures) shall be a 
minimum of 300 feet from any property line (including a road right-of-way) 
tinless the manure storage structure is being installed to mitigate a pollution 
hazard and meeting the 300 foot setback is not feasible or is impractical. In no 
case shall a new manure storage structure be located within the minimum 
building setback for the zoning district whore it is located.

P. For parcels of land greater than 1 acre in shoreland or "R" zoning,
1.. Limited to up to 25 Chickens (no other fowl) and/ 20 rabbits
2. Shelter, fencing, cages must be provided — no free range animals.
3. Roosters are prohibited
4, All li tier must be garden applied and tilled or removed from property
5, Property owner must maintain a Livestock Registration with Todd County

Q. For parcels located in shoreland zoning that have historic feedlot use,
1. Owner must maintain Livestock Registration with Todd County.
2. May register for up to 9.9 All maximum animal units on parcel.
3. Todd County will require plans and specifications for review prior to approval 
of registration verifying setbacks, potential runoff, wetlands, etc..
4. Final determination is made by Planning and Zoning Administrator

R. A violation of this section shall constitute a misdemeanor and be processed
according to the procedures established in Article X,

Attachment D

Page 27 of 27



 
 

 Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Planning Commission 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: April 16, 2018 
Report date: April 6, 2018 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: Request for Map Amendment (Rezone) 
Request for map amendment submitted by Blake Thompson to rezone 38 acres from A3 (Urban Fringe 
District) to R1 (Suburban Residence District). Parcels 31.001.6100 and 31.001.6200. Part of the SW ¼ 
of SE ¼ and GOVT Lot 2 in Sect 01 Twp 112 Range 15  in Featherstone Township. A3 Zoned District. 
 
Application Information: 
Applicant(s): Blake Thompson  
Address of zoning request: 23849 289th ST, Red Wing, MN 55066 
Parcel(s): 31.001.6100 and 31.001.6200 
Abbreviated Legal Description: Part of the SW ¼ of SE ¼ and GOVT Lot 2 in Sect 01 Twp 112 Range 
15 in Featherstone Township 
Township Information: Featherstone Township endorsed acknowledgement of the applicant’s 
request.   
Zoning District: A3 (Urban Fringe District) 
 
Attachments and links: 
Application and submitted Project Summary  
Site Map(s) 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance (GCZO): 
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
 
Background:  
The applicant owns 2 parcels of land comprising approximately 38 acres in Featherstone Township. 
The parcels are currently zoned A3 (Urban Fringe District) requiring a minimum of 35 acres per 
parcel to establish new dwelling sites. The applicant’s primary residence currently occupies the 
eastern most parcel, there is density remaining to establish a second dwelling on the unoccupied 
parcel. The applicant is requesting the rezone to R1 to allow the property to be subdivided in the 
future to establish a proposed total of up to 4 dwelling sites.  

 
Project Review: 
 The subject property consists of 2 contiguous parcels comprising 38 acres.  

 Existing property access is located off of 289th ST in the southwest corner of the property. 289th 
ST is an existing private drive that may require upgrades to meet the private road standards 
required by Goodhue County’s Subdivision Controls Ordinance. 

 The applicant is proposing to establish a second driveway access off of Hay Creek Trail on the 
west side of the property.  

 The proposed future use of the parcels is to subdivide the property to establish a total of four 
dwelling development sites. 

Future subdivision of the property will require platting. 

 The property has significant topographical relief and portions of the northern half of the property 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 3 

http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428


may qualify as Blufflands. Future development of these areas would be subject to the 
requirements of GCZO Article 12 (Bluffland Protection).  

 There is no Shoreland District located within property limits. Aerial imagery does indicate the 
presence of intermittent streams (dry runs) on the property that should be carefully considered 
with proposed development to prevent erosion and protect downstream water quality. 

 The majority of the property is currently undeveloped and is covered by deciduous forest. Future 
cutting and vegetation removal necessary for development will be required to adhere to the 
standards and best management practices outlined in GCZO Article 7 Section 7 (Vegetative, Tree, 
& Woodland Alterations). 

 Surrounding land uses include low-density residential to the east, south, and west. A medium 
density rural residential subdivision is situated less than 1000 feet north of the subject 
properties. High-density residential subdivisions located within Red Wing city limits are situated 
less than a half-mile east.  

 Adjacent zoning districts include A3 to the north, east, and west; A2 to the south.  

 Per GCZO Article 13 (Confined Feedlot Regulations): 

-  New residential districts (R1) shall not be located within 1000 feet or 96% OFFSET odor 
annoyance free rating distance, as determined by the OFFSET odor evaluation model, from 
any existing feedlot, whichever is greater. 

- New feedlots are not permissible within 1 mile of the city of Red Wing or within A3 and R1 
districts. 

The nearest adjacent registered feedlot is located greater than 1 mile south of the subject 
properties.  

 The purpose of the R1 district is to provide a district which will define and protect areas suitable 
for low to medium density residential development as the principal use of the land and to allow 
related facilities desirable for a residential environment. It is also intended that this district allow 
varying densities of development in accordance with the ability to provide water and sewer 
facilities. 

 The Prime Farmland Rating for Agriculture is as follows: 

Soil Name Slope 
Amount 
(acres) 

% of 
Total Prime Farmland Rating 

Rasset Fine Sandy Loam 0-6% 1.7 4.5% Prime Farmland 
Newhouse-Valton 12-18% 4.6 12.3% Not Prime Farmland 
Chelsea Loamy Sand 2-6% 6.2 16.5% Not Prime Farmland 
Chelsea Loamy Sand 6-12% 4.3 11.5% Not Prime Farmland 
Chelsea Loamy Sand 12-35% 0.5 1.4% Not Prime Farmland 
Hawick Sandy Loam 18-45% 14.0 37.3% Not Prime Farmland 
Udifluvent Loam 2-12% 6.1 16.2% Not Prime Farmland 
Coloma Loamy Sand 0-6% 0.1 0.4% Not Prime Farmland 

 

 The property appears to have adequate soils and ample room to accommodate compliant sanitary 
facilities for proposed future developments consistent with SSTS regulations. 

 Staff’s review of property records revealed no Condition or Interim Use Permits have been issued 
to the property. 

 The proposed rezone appears compatible with the goals and objectives of the Goodhue County 
Comprehensive Plan:  

“Direct the location of new or replacement dwelling sites in areas that minimize loss or 
conversion of prime agricultural soils” 

“If residential development occurs, it should be compact and designed to preserve the prime 
farmland for agricultural uses or other compatible uses to minimize conflicts between 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 3 



agriculture and non-agricultural uses” 

“Soils with Prime Farmland rating shall be protected from non-agricultural development 
whenever possible” 

“Provide more housing choices for rural residents” 

 No impacts to historic amenities are anticipated as a result of the proposed rezone. 

 Future development near any qualifying bluffs will be required to meet setbacks to areas 
qualifying as Bluffland on the property as well as meet Bluffland protection standards specified in 
GCZO Article 12 to protect those scenic amenities. 

 Dwelling development density in A3 is restricted to 1 dwelling per 35 acres. 

Dwelling density for section 01 is currently at 64 dwellings, 61 of which are located in the E1/2 of 
the section, and 9 are not located within an existing platted area. The applicants are proposing 2 
additional dwellings beyond what is currently allowed, bringing the final density total to 66 for 
the section.  

Allowing additional dwelling development sites in this location does not appear to negatively 
affect the surrounding area or the city of Red Wing. 

 No substantial negative impacts to adjacent properties are anticipated as a result of the proposed 
rezone. 

 The proposed rezone appears compatible with existing adjacent land uses in the immediate area. 

 

Staff Recommendation: 
LUM Staff recommends the Planning Advisory Commission  

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

 

Recommend the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the map amendment request from 
Blake Thompson to rezone 38 acres from A3 (Urban Fringe District) to R1 (Suburban Residence 
District). 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 3 of 3 





k.E-L e1ve»

• GOODHUE COUNTY ZONING DISTRICT CHANGE APPLICATION MAR 2 8 ?Ota 
La11d � 

Parcel # 3 \ · CC)\ - Lo\� Permit ;z \r)-C() �allagellleat

PROPERTY OWNER INFORMATION 
1----

I Last Name Thompson 
f------------- -- -· 
i Street Address 23849 289th St. 

First Blake , M.I. G Date of Birth  

Phone 

; City Red Wing State MN Zip 55066 Attach Legal Description as Exhibit "A" 00

i Authorized Agent n/a Phone n/a 
L 

: M�iling Addres_:_?! Landowner: 23849 289th St. - Red Wing, �� ??0§6
Mailing Address of Agent: n/a 
PROJECT INFORMATION 

Lot Size 35.1 +2.9= 38acre Structure Dimensions (if applicable) 60x40 
··················· --- - ····-······ 

i>�oposeeizo�e _H_1_· __ _______ _

Residential (two parcels- A3) 

Proposed Use: Residential (four parcels- R1) 

r-oiscLAIMER AND PR<>PERTY-<>WNER -SIGNATURE
; I hereby swear and affirm that the information supplied to Goodhue County Land Use Management Department is accurate and true. I 
• acknowledge that this application is rendered invalid and void should the County determine that information supplied by me, the applicant
! in applying for this variance is inaccurate or untrue. I hereby give authorization for the above mentioned agent to represent me and my 

f property in the above mentioned matter. 

1 �;�����;�
�;�����:��

; 
--
-
---- - - -----------

���� 3/, ,z�o,i_� 
Signature of Agent Authorized by Agent 

TOWNSHIP INFORMATION Township Zoning Permit Attached? 0 If no please have township co�ple�e b�lo_w: •.. -!
: By signing this form, the Township acknowledges being made aware of the request stated above. In no way does signing 
: this application indicate th ownship's official approval or denial of the variance request. 

; couNTY SECTION ---couNTY--FEE-$soo__ RECEiPT tt\loJ.CD-oATE- PAio�l�---
• Applicant requests a variance from Article _ _  Section __ Subdivision __ of the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance
i
I What is the formal wording of the request?
! 

Shoreland Lake/Stream Name. _________ _ ____ _ Zoning District __ _ 

' Date Received ____ _ Date of Public Hearing ___ _  _ 

I Action Taken: __ Approve _ _  Deny Conditions: 

DNR Notice __ City Notice ____ _ 

















 
 

 Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Planning Commission 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: April 16, 2018 
Report date: April 6, 2018 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Request for CUP for a Veterinary Clinic 
Request submitted by Nicholas and Krystyna Stoffel for CUP to establish a Veterinary Clinic at 26336 
130th Ave Welch, MN 55089. Parcel 46.029.0303. Part of the NW ¼ of NW ¼, SW ¼ of NW ¼, 
and SE ¼ of NW ¼, Sect 29 Twp 113 Range 16 in Welch Township. A2 Zoned District. 
 
Application Information: 
Applicant: Nicholas and Krystyna Stoffel (owners) 
Address of zoning request: 26336 130th Ave Welch, MN 55089 
Parcel(s): Part of the NW ¼ of NW ¼, SW ¼ of NW ¼, and SE ¼ of NW ¼, Sect 29 Twp 113 Range 
16 in Welch Township 
Township Information: Welch Township endorsed acknowledgment of the applicants’ request. 
Zoning District: A2 (Agriculture District) 
 
Attachments and links: 
Application and submitted project summary  
Site Map(s) 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance (GCZO): 
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
 
Background:  
The applicants have owned and operated Stoffel Equine Veterinary Services as a mobile veterinary 
clinic with a focus on providing horse care and examinations.  In 2017 the Stoffel’s received approval 
from Goodhue County to construct a 20,800 sq ft “L”-shaped agricultural accessory building for “hay 
storage and personal use.” The applicants desire CUP approval to utilize this existing structure as a 
permanent base for their equine veterinary business to provide “in-patient” and “out-patient” 
veterinary services. The business currently exists as a mobile ambulatory practice. 

Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance: Article 4 Conditional/Interim Uses 
No CUP/IUP shall be recommended by the County Planning Commission unless said Commission 
specifies facts in their findings for each case which establish the proposed CUP/IUP will not be 
injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity for the purposes 
already permitted, will not substantially diminish and impair property values within the 
immediate vicinity, will not impede the normal and orderly development and improvement of 
surrounding vacant property for uses predominant to the area, that adequate measures have been, 
or will be, taken to provide utilities, access roads, drainage and other necessary facilities, to 
provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space, to control offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise 
and vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs and other 
lights in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will result. 
 
Project Summary: 
 The subject property is the site of the applicant’s primary residence and consists of a single parcel 

comprising approximately 23.78 acres. 

 Adjacent zoning districts include A2 (Agriculture District) to the north, east, and south; A1 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 4 

http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428


(Agriculture Protection District) to the west.  

 Adjacent land uses include agriculture, low-density residential and undeveloped forest-land. 

 The Veterinary Clinic will be located in an existing 80 ft by 60 foot and 76 ft by 80 ft (20,800 
total sq ft) pole-style detached accessory building. The building was permitted by Goodhue 
County in October 2016. The structure has capacity to hold up to 6 horses at a time.  

No new structures are proposed with the request. 

A new building permit is required due to the change of use of the facilities. 

 The business is operated by the applicants. No Non-resident Employees are proposed with this 
request. 

 Parcel access consists of a “u-shaped” gravel drive located off of 130th Ave on the west side of the 
property. 

130th Avenue is a gravel surfaced roadway.  

 A separate fire number has been assigned to the Veterinary Clinic site.  

Adequate emergency vehicle access is available to service the existing building location. 

 Typical equipment utilized for the business includes a utility vehicle, trailers, veterinary 
implements, and standard office equipment. 

 The main activities on-site are the loading and off-loading of trailers with animals and 
equipment.  

 Minimal additional traffic is anticipated to be generated as a result of the request. Business 
operations will continue to be primarily ambulatory, minimizing traffic to the site. 

 Hours of operation are proposed to be year-round, Monday through Friday from 8:00 AM to 
6:00 PM and Saturday from 9:00 AM to 1:00 PM (excluding holidays).  

 Incidental sale of retail items is made available to customers. The applicant indicated the sale of 
retail items comprises no more than 5% of total business operations.  

 Minimum off-street parking provisions are not specified for Veterinary Clinics. Pursuant to 
GCZO Article 11, Section 16, minimum off-street parking provisions shall be shall be determined 
by using the requirements for a closely related use which is listed.  

The Zoning Administrator has determined Veterinarian Clinics to be most similar to “Hospitals” 
which require a minimum of one parking space for every three guest beds, plus one space for 
every two employees. The minimum number of parking stalls required for this request is 4. 

Ample room exists on the property to fulfill off-street parking requirements.  

 An existing compliant holding tank septic system services the facility. 

 Ben Hoyt, Goodhue County Sanitarian, offered the following comments regarding the applicants’ 
wastewater needs: 

“A veterinary Clinic would be required to have a compliant septic system for appropriate 
wastewater treatment. A business of this nature would also require a septic system operating 
permit. Any building permits or other subsequent permits associated with the use of the 
property as a veterinary clinic would require a septic system installation permit and septic 
system operating permit prior to approval by Environmental Health. Prior records on this 
property indicate that a holding tank system was allowed for the structure’s previous use. Some 
components of the holding tank system may be utilized for the new system provided that they 
meet requirements for what is proposed.” 

 Solid waste disposal services are provided by a P.I.G of Hager City, WI. 

Prompt disposal of any deceased animal carcasses will be provided by a local rendering service. 

 The applicants are proposing to install one exterior sign on the front of the building near the 
main entrance. 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 4 



All exterior signage located within property boundaries must follow GCZO Article 11 section 17. 

The applicants shall consult the appropriate road authority prior to placing any signage located 
within road right-of-ways.  

 Existing “dusk to dawn” farmyard lights provide exterior lighting for the facility. No additional 
lighting is proposed. 

 Landscaping, grading, and excavating activities were completed with the construction of the 
facility. No additional landscaping measures are proposed. 

 Stormwater is collected via existing roof guttering and directed to existing drainage culverts and 
natural drainage channels. 

 Exterior storage of business materials will be screened from public view via a covered lean-to 
area located along the east side of the existing building. 

 The facility is currently used to stable horses. No additional offensive noise, dust, odors, or fumes 
are anticipated to be generated as a result of the proposed use. 

Manure generated within the facility is collected and land applied on the property for use as a soil 
fertilizer. 

 Goodhue County Feedlot Officer Virginia Westlie offered the following comments regarding the 
applicants’ request: 

“Goodhue County requires locations to register if they have over 10AU (animal units). This 
place would be staying under 10AU. They would not be required to register. Being that it is a 
confinement barn they will also be able to control the manure more as well. It also appears that 
they have acreage that they would be placing the manure on from the barns. As long as they 
still follow the setbacks from sensitive features and neighbors while spreading it throughout 
their acreage they should be fine.” 

 The Welch Township Board approved a Conditional Use Permit for the applicants’ request on 
3/22/18; subject to the following conditions: 

- “No kitchen or living facilities” 
- “No transfer of CUP to the third party” 
- “A sign identifying the business will be permitted – not to exceed approximately 6’x6’.” 

Welch Township also offered the following comment: “Request Goodhue County consider annual 
review of permit.” 

 Goodhue County typically reserves annual CUP review requirements for unique uses that have 
demonstrated the potential for unanticipated land use impacts or intense land uses that warrant 
a second look once operations have commenced to address issues that could not be anticipated at 
the time of approval.  

 

Draft Findings of Fact: 
The following staff findings shall be amended to reflect concerns conveyed during the PAC meeting 
and public hearing. 
 

1. The proposed Veterinary Clinic does not appear injurious to the use and enjoyment of properties 
in the immediate vicinity for uses already permitted, nor would it substantially diminish and 
impair property values in the immediate vicinity. The use would provide a necessary service to 
the rural community and support the agricultural economy established in the vicinity. 

2. The establishment of the proposed Veterinary Clinic is not anticipated to impede the normal and 
orderly development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant to 
the area. The use is proposed to meet all development standards of the Goodhue County Zoning 
Ordinance and is an agriculturally-oriented use that appears compatible with adjacent land uses. 

3. A review of the applicants submitted project summary indicates adequate utilities, access roads, 
drainage and other necessary facilities are available to accommodate the proposed use.  

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 3 of 4 



4. The submitted plans identify means to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space to 
serve the proposed use and meet the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance’s parking requirements.  

5. The submitted plans detail adequate measures to prevent or control offensive odor, fumes, dust, 
noise, and vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance. Furthermore, the applicants’ 
lighting plans appear capable of controlling lights in such a manner that no disturbance to 
neighboring properties will result. 

 

Staff recommendation is based on the review of the submitted application and project area prior to 
the public hearing. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
LUM Staff recommends the Planning Advisory Commission  

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

 
Recommend the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request from Nicholas and 
Krystyna Stoffel for a CUP to establish a Veterinary Clinic. 
Subject to the following conditions: 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. Hours of operation shall be Monday through Friday, 8:00 AM to 6:00 PM, and Saturdays 
from 9:00 AM to 1:00 PM (excluding holidays); 

3. On-street parking shall be prohibited; 

4. On-street loading or off-loading shall be prohibited;  

5. Applicants’ shall obtain Building Permit approvals for change of use for the existing structure 
from the Goodhue County Building Permits Department prior to establishing the use; 

6. Applicants’ shall work with Goodhue County Environmental Health to achieve compliance 
with the Goodhue County SSTS Ordinance; 

7. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to Article 22 
A-2 (Agriculture District); 

8. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations. 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 4 of 4 





















 
 

 Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Planning Commission 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: April 16, 2018 
Report date: April 6, 2018 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 
Request for Map Amendment (Rezone) 
Request for map amendment submitted by Simanski Metals LLC (Authorized Agent: Kevin Simanski) 
to adjust the zone district boundaries of two existing parcels of property totaling 4.06 acres resulting in 
3.20 acres to be included within the A2 (Agriculture District) and 0.84 acres to be included in the B-2  
(Highway Business District). Parcel 340081400 and Parcel 340081500. Part of the SE ¼ of NW ¼ of 
Sect 8 Twp 112 Range 14 in Hay Creek Township.  
 
Request for Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for a Junk/Salvage Reclamation Yard 
Request for a CUP by Simanski Metals LLC (Authorized Agent: Kevin Simanski) to construct and 
operate a Junk Salvage Reclamation Yard.  Parcel 340081400 and Parcel 340081500. Part of the SE ¼ 
of NW ¼ of Sect 8 Twp 112 Range 14 in Hay Creek Township. 
 

Application Information: 
Applicant(s): Simanski Metals LLC (Authorized Agent: Kevin Simanski) 
Address of zoning request: 29409 Hwy 58 Blvd, Red Wing, MN 55066 
Parcels: 34-008-1400 and 34-008-1500 
Abbreviated Legal Description:  Part of the SE ¼ of NW ¼ of Sect 8 Twp 112 Range 14 in Hay 
Creek Township. 
Township Information: The Conditional/Interim Use Permit Application was signed by the Hay 
Creek Township Clerk on March 13, 2018, indicating that the Township acknowledges having been 
made aware of the application made to the County.  The Township has provided a list of questions 
raised by the residents at an April 5, 2018, Public Meeting held by the Hay Creek Township Planning 
Commission.  The list of questions and responses offered by the Applicant have been included as an 
attachment with this Staff Report. 
Current Zoning Districts:  Parcel 340081400 A2 (Agricultural District), Parcel 340081500 B2 
(Highway Business) 
 
Attachments and links: 
Application and Project Summary  
Site Map(s) 
Photographs – Appendix 1 
GC Enforcement Letter – Appendix 2 
Hay Creek Township Comments – Appendix 3 
Neighbor Comments – Appendix 4 
LUM Staff Rezone Project Review – Appendix 5 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance: http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
 
 
 
 
 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 6 

http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428


Background:  
 
Simanski Metals LLC currently owns two parcels of property located at the intersection of Hay Creek 
Hills Trail and State Hwy 58, in Hay Creek Township.  Tax Parcel #340081400 is 1.78 acres (with 
frontage on State Hwy 58) and is currently in the A-2 (Agriculture) Zone District.  The 1.78-acre 
parcel is currently vacant, buildings that previously existed on the site have been demolished and 
removed.  Tax Parcel #340081500 is 2.28 acres and is in the B-2 (Highway Business) Zone District.  
Parcel #340081500 is located at the intersection of State Hwy 58 and Hay Creek Hills Trail and is 
currently vacant.   
 
The Simanski’s are proposing to reconfigure the existing parcels to create a 3.20-acre parcel 
proposed to be included in the County’s A-2 (Agriculture) Zone and a 0.84-acre parcel to be included 
in the B-2 (Highway Business) Zone.  The purpose of the Zoning Map Amendment request is to 
reconfigure the two existing parcels to create a larger site (3.20 acres) zoned A-2 to accommodate 
proposed plans for a scrap metals recycling/transfer station.  The proposed 0.84-acre parcel is 
intended to include a portion of a shared access driveway and some additional space that would be 
available to an unspecified business use.  The proposed reconfiguration of property would require 
platting as a follow-up step if the Zoning Map Amendment is approved. 
 
In addition to submitting an application to amend the County’s Official Zoning Map to reconfigure 
the two parcels, Simanski Metals LLC has also applied for a Conditional Use Permit to construct and 
operate a Junk/Salvage Operation in an A-2 Zone District in order to develop a Metals 
Recycling/Transfer Station on the proposed 3.20 parcel. 
 
Included below is a summary of key information used to evaluate the Zoning Map Amendment 
(Change of Zone) and Conditional Use Permit requests: 
 

1. Existing uses: Following acquisition of the subject property, the Simanski’s demolished 
and removed several existing structures, which were in poor condition and cleared some of 
the vegetation, which had become established on the site.  The property had been used for 
business purposes in the past.  Historical uses included the old Skyline Ballroom and 
Supper Club, Camper and Snowmobile Sales, and a dwelling site and agricultural use. 

 
2. Proposed Uses:  Simanski Metals, LLC is proposing the following uses on the property: 

“Construction of a building to house their trucks and be able to service them on 
site.  The space directly behind the building will be for a truck scale.  The back 
corner of the lot adjacent to Hay Creek Hill Drive will be for parking roll-off boxes 
and trailers.  The other back corner adjacent to the Gadient property will be 
where the proposed transfer station will be located.  The purpose of the transfer 
station is to have a designated receiving area where loads of mixed metal and 
loads of mixed demolition materials are dumped onto state-approved areas, 
sorted and reloaded into separate and larger containers to be hauled more 
efficiently to market.” 

 
The Metals Recycling/Transfer Station proposed use would be conducted on the on the 
proposed 3.20 acre parcel as a conditionally permitted use (if approved) within the A2 
Zone District.  The proposed 0.84 acre parcel is to retain the B2 (Highway Business) 
Zoning classification and would include development of a shared driveway intended to 
serve both parcels and some additional space for an un-specified future business use. 

 
3. Reconfiguration of Parcel Boundaries: If Simanski Metals LLC is successful in 

gaining approval from the County Board of the proposed Zoning Map Amendment 
reconfiguring of the existing parcel boundaries will require platting of the property.  The 
Conditional Use Permit if approved may include a condition requiring platting of the 
subject property according to applicable provisions of the County’s Subdivision Controls 
Ordinance. 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 6 



4. Criteria for evaluating Zoning Map Amendment:  The County’s process and criteria 
for reviewing a Zoning Map Amendment request is specified in Article 3, Section 2, Subd. 
5.  Included as an attachment to this Staff Report is a review of the Simanski Metals LLC 
Zoning Map Amendment request for conformance with the provisions set forth in Subd. 5. 

 
5. Access to Site:  The subject property proposed for the Zoning Map Amendment request 

and CUP is located at the intersection of State Highway 58 and Hay Creek Hills Drive.  A 
Driveway Access Permit has been approved by MNDOT that restricts use of a shared drive 
access (with the Thomas Gadient Property) currently at the northeast corner the property 
and allow a driveway access point from Hay Creek Hills Drive at the southeast corner of 
the subject property.  The proposed driveway access to the site negotiates a sloped portion 
of the site and meets Hay Creek Hills Drive just beyond the limit of bituminous asphalt.  
The turning movement of trucks entering and exiting the site may generate significant 
wear and tear on the gravel portion of Hay Creek Hills Drive.  In addition the close 
proximity of the driveway access point to State Highway 58 (@ 50 feet), allows for very 
little stacking distance if more than one truck is leaving the site at the same time.  The 
proposed access driveway is designed to serve both proposed lots.  If the project were 
approved cross-driveway, access easements would need to be recorded. 

 
6. MPCA Transfer Station Permit:  The Applicant has not provided any detail regarding 

Minnesota Pollution Control Agency permitting requirements for the proposed Transfer 
Station.  It is anticipated that the Applicant would apply for a “Permit by Rule” Solid Waste 
Transfer Station Permit.  If a decisions is made to approve the Conditional Use Permit that 
would authorize zoning approval for the Metals Recycling/Transfer Station Project, a 
condition would have to included that the Transfer Station Use may not begin until 
approved by the MPCA. 

 
7. Screening/Buffers:  The applicant has proposed some tree plantings and has stated that 

the location of the proposed structure and some of the existing slopes would serve to 
screen and buffer exterior operations including storage of containers, semi-trailers, and 
the transfer station component of the proposed use.  Land Use Management Staff believes 
the Applicant has failed to provide sufficient measures to screen and buffer the 
Recycling/Transfer Station Use from surrounding residential properties and motorists 
traversing Highway 58.  Additional landscaping, privacy fences, and/or earthen berms may 
be needed to sufficiently screen and buffer the proposed use.  The limited size of the site 
somewhat limits opportunities for screening and buffering measures. 

 
8. County Solid Waste Management Plan:  The County has adopted a Solid Waste Plan 

Designation calling for all MMSW (Mixed Municipal Solid Waste) generated in Goodhue 
County to be sent to the RWRRF (Red Wing Resource Recovery Facility).  The County 
intends to pass an Ordinance to implement this MMSW designation-planning goal.  The 
Simanski’s have stated that the proposed Metals Recycling/Transfer Station Use will not 
handle municipal solid waste or hazardous waste materials.  The proposed facility would 
be subject to the County’s Solid Waste Management Plan and Ordinance. 

 
9. Current Violations:  Simanski Metals LLC has made some improvements to the current 

1.78-acre parcel (A2 Zone) including construction of a driveway access at the northeast 
corner of the property and a gravel parking lot area.  In addition, a variety of different 
types of containers have been placed on the property.   Evidence has been provided to the 
County illustrating truck traffic during early morning and evening hours hauling items to 
and from the site.  Planning and Zoning Administrator, Michael A. Wozniak, AICP, 
contacted Simanski Metals, LLC by letter (dated February 16, 2018; Appendix 2) to inform 
the Simanski’s that a Scrap Metals Transfer Facility would require approval of Conditional 
Use Permit or Interim Use Permit by the County.  The letter expressly stated, “Any 
operation of a Scrap Metals storage, recycling or transfer facility must cease immediately”.  
Nearby property, owners have complained that use of the property has continued.  
Photographs have been provided to County Staff to confirm this activity. 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 3 of 6 



 
10. Stormwater Management:  The proposed site plan includes an “infiltration basin” 

located in the southwest corner of the site that would capture runoff from most of the 
hard surfaced features on the site including gravel or paved parking/driveways. 

 
The Applicant stated that the MPCA will establish storm water permit requirements when 
considering the Transfer Station Permit request.  If the requested CUP is approved a 
condition should be included that the applicant must provide evidence of compliance with 
MPCA Storm Water Permit requirements prior to any site grading or construction. 

 
11. Parking/Loading: The submitted site plan includes a large gravel surfaced area and 

paved driveways plus a concrete apron at the vehicular access to the proposed building 
(shop to store and service trucks).  Parking spaces have not been specifically identified.  
The applicant has not specified how many drivers or other employees are expected to be 
present on-site and/or parking personal vehicles.  There appears to be room on the 
property to provide sufficient site area for the use.  If the CUP is approved, a condition 
should require that parking spots be specified on a revised site prior to initiation of any 
site work or building construction. No on-street parking will be allowed. 
 

12. Lighting:  The applicant has indicated that they are planning to place security lighting 
on the building and possibly in the transfer area. They are not planning on any lights on 
poles anywhere on the property.  The County requires that site lighting be directed 
downward towards the ground and not off-site. 

 
13. Hours of Operation:  The Applicant stated “Currently their drivers start at 6am 

Monday-Friday.  One of the semi tractors leaves earlier on weekdays, and is gone all day.  
Our workday generally ends by 6 pm.  Some sorting may be done on Saturdays, and some 
truck servicing is also done on Saturdays.”  If a determination is made to approve the 
CUP, a condition should be included to specifically identify and limit hours of operation. 

 
14. Water/Wastewater Treatment:  The applicant has indicated that plans call for use of 

an existing well and development of a new Sub-surface Wastewater Treatment System to 
serve water/wastewater needs for the proposed shop building.  The well and wastewater 
treatment system are intended to also serve future development that may occur on the 
0.84 acre parcel. 

 
Conclusions: 
The subject property included in the Simanski Metals LLC, Zoning Map Amendment and 
Junk/Salvage Reclamation Yard Conditional Use Permit request proposes a use of the property that 
appear  incompatible with nearby residential properties including a residential district (Moore’s 
Addition). Neighboring residents have raised numerous concerns regarding aesthetic and nuisance 
related impacts that may be generated by the proposed Metals Recycling Transfer Station Use.  
Issues of concern include traffic safety, noise, blowing trash/debris and potential environmental 
contamination concerns from handling of demolition debris on-site. 
 
Land Use Management Staff are of the opinion that the proposed site included in the Zoning Map 
Amendment and CUP requests is not appropriate for proposed Junk/Salvage Reclamation Yard 
(Metals Recycling/Transfer Station) based on its limited site area and close proximity to fourteen 
existing dwelling sites. Furthermore, site access is challenging for Semi-Trucks and may pose 
significant traffic safety issues at the intersection of Hay Creek Hills Drive and State Highway 58. 
 
Staff does not support the proposed Zoning Map Amendment or CUP requests and have drafted 
Findings of Fact to support denial of these requests. 
 
 

 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 4 of 6 



Actions for Consideration: 

Land Use Management Staff recommendations: 

Draft Findings of Fact to support “Denial” Simanski Metals LLC Zoning Map 
Amendment request: 
The following staff findings shall be amended to reflect concerns conveyed during the PAC meeting 
Staff recommendations are based on the review of the submitted application and project area prior 
to the public hearing. 
 
Draft Findings of Fact: 

1. Goodhue County Comprehensive Plan Element 4 (Business and Industry)  

Diverse Business Objectives: 

Ensure that new and expanding commercial, industrial, and institutional uses are 
consistent and compatible with the County’s natural environment, quality of rural living, 
and the needs of County residents.  The land use being proposed as a reason for 
the Zoning Map Amendment may negatively affect the “quality of rural 
living”. 

Diverse Business Implementation Strategies: 

Direct business and industry growth to the approximately zoned districts keeping in 
mind access to public services and surround land uses.  The proposed Metals 
Recycling/Transfer Station use may be more appropriately located on a 
site not in close proximity to a residential district and relatively high 
concentration of dwelling sites. 

2. The proposed use of the property included in the Zone Map Amendment request as a Metals 
Recycling and Transfer Station is incompatible with surrounding residential land uses.   

3. The proposed use of the subject property will create aesthetic and nuisance related conflicts 
that may significantly affect the ability of nearby property owners to use and enjoy their 
properties.   

4. The fourteen existing dwellings within Section 8, in close proximity (within 1800 feet) may be 
negatively impacted by the proposed Metals Recycling/Transfer Station Use. 

5. The Applicant has constructed site improvements and conducted business activity prior to 
obtaining required permits. 

 

Staff Recommendation: 
LUM Staff recommends the Planning Advisory Commission  

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

 

Recommend the County Board of Commissioners DENY the map amendment request from Simanski 
Metals LLC to reconfigure Zone Districts for Parcel 340081400 and Parcel 340081500 resulting in 
amendment of the Official Zoning Map to result in 3.20 acres to be included in the A2 (Agriculture) 
District and 0.84 acres to be included in the B2 (Highway Business) District. Part of the SE ¼ of NW 
¼ of Sect 8 Twp 112 Range 14 in Hay Creek Township. As legally described on the attached “Rezoning 
Exhibit. 

 

 

 

 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 5 of 6 



Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance: Article 4 Conditional/Interim Uses 
No CUP/IUP shall be recommended by the County Planning Commission unless said Commission 
specifies facts in their findings for each case which establish the proposed CUP/IUP will not be 
injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity for the purposes 
already permitted, will not substantially diminish and impair property values within the 
immediate vicinity, will not impede the normal and orderly development and improvement of 
surrounding vacant property for uses predominant to the area, that adequate measures have been, 
or will be, taken to provide utilities, access roads, drainage and other necessary facilities, to 
provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space, to control offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise 
and vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs and other 
lights in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will result. 

 

Draft Findings of Fact to support “Denial” of Simanski Metals LLC, Conditional Use 
Permit request to allow construction and operation of a Junk/Salvage Reclamation 
Yard: 
 
Draft Findings of Fact: 

1. The proposed use of the property included in the Zone Map Amendment request as a Metals 
Recycling and Transfer Station is incompatible with surrounding residential land uses.   

2. The proposed use of the subject property will create aesthetic and nuisance related conflicts 
that may significantly impact the ability of nearby property owners to use and enjoy their 
properties.  

3. The fourteen dwellings within Section 8, in close proximity (within 1800 feet) may be 
negatively impacted by the proposed Metals Recycling/Transfer Station Use. 

4. Neighborhood concerns include potential noise, traffic safety and potential unsightliness of 
the proposed Metals Recycling/Transfer Station use. 

5. The proposed Metals Recycling/Transfer Station use may make surrounding vacant property 
less desirable for future residential development. 

6. The proposed driveway access to the site negotiates a sloped portion of the site and meets 
Hay Creek Hills Drive just beyond the limit of bituminous asphalt.  The turning movement of 
trucks entering and exiting the site may generate significant wear and tear on the gravel 
portion of Hay Creek Hills Drive.  In addition, the close proximity of the driveway access 
point to State Highway 58 (@ 50 feet), allow for very little stacking distance if more than one 
truck is leaving the site at the same time. 

7. The Applicant has not clearly specified designated off-street parking spaces for 
employees/owners.   

8. The Applicant has not proposed sufficient screening and buffering improvements including 
trees or hedges, earthen berms and/or privacy fences to screen the proposed transfer site area 
and the container storage area. 

9. The Applicant has constructed site improvements and conducted business activity prior to 
obtaining required permits. 

Staff Recommendation: 
LUM Staff recommends the Planning Advisory Commission  

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

 

Recommend the County Board of Commissioners DENY the Conditional Use Permit request from 
Simanski Metals LLC to construct and operate a Junk/Salvage Reclamation Yard as proposed on 
Parcel 340081400 and Parcel 340081500.  Part of the SE ¼ of NW ¼ of Sect 8 Twp 112 Range 14 in 
Hay Creek Township.  

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 6 of 6 



























APPENDIX 1





APPENDIX 2



Ref: CUP Application # Z18.0017 

The Hay Creek Planning Commission held a public meeting on 5 April 2018 for the purpose of 
promoting communication between Township residents and the applicants for a CUP request to 
operate a Junk, Salvage Yard on parcels 340081400 and 340081500 in Hay Creek. The 
Simanskis attended the meeting and were given an opportunity to present and discuss 
their proposal. The purpose of this message is to pass on a sense of the resident's 
position on the important CUP issues and pass on the recommendations of the Hay 
Creek Planning Commission on the CUP.  It is my hope and expectation that this email 
and its attachments will be passed on to the Planning Commission members so that 
they may consider them before their 16 April, 2018, meeting. 

The approximately thirty-five Township residents present at the meeting expressed universal 
opposition to the granting of a permit. The opposition is based on the inability of the applicants 
to satisfactorily overcome key objections regarding effects of their proposed business on the 
health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Hay Creek Township. The applicants statements 
regarding their plans were not able to satisfactorily deal with the following concerns: 

 Traffic safety problems caused by a poorly located access to the site and Hwy 58 
 Groundwater protection 
 Protection of land values 
 Interference with the ability of neighboring residents to enjoy their property 
 Disruption of the rural residential nature of the area by an industrial operation 
 Past and potential future applicant disregard for compliance with ordinances and permit 
conditions 

The recommendation of the Hay Creek Planning Commission is that a permit not be granted at 
this time. The serious  potential groundwater pollution and traffic safety problems cry 
for further research, followed by effective prevention measures, before the proposal is seriously 
considered by the County Planning Commission. If the two health and safety issues can be 
mitigated the important landowner concerns about enjoyment of their property, effect on land 
values and disruption of the nature of area will remain as barriers to approval of a recycling 
business for the site.   
The attachment entitled "Simanski-Hay Creek Public Mtg" provides questions that were 
answered by the applicants in a manner that did not settle the concerns of the Planning 
Commission and residents in attendance at the meeting. 

The attachment entitled "Simanski Issues"  provides questions for County staff that we believe 
should be researched, with answers provided to the County Planning Commission and the 
Board  before they reach any well considered conclusion on the permit application.   

Jim Maybach  
Chairman, Hay Creek Planning Commission 

APPENDIX 3



QUESTIONS ABOUT PROPOSED BUSINESS USE OF SIMANSKI PROPERTY 
The following questions were discussed with the Simanskis at a public meeting of the Hay Creek Planning 

Commission on 5 April, 2018. Their responses are in italics. 

QUESTIONS ABOUT THE PROPOSED OPERATION 

Q: What is the Standard Industrial Code (SIC) for the proposed business? A: We don’t know yet. The county will assign 
that code. 

Q: What materials do you plan to bring into the junk salvage reclamation yard? A: Wood, shingles, metals, cardboard. 

Q: What are mixed demolition materials? A: Most anything except hazardous waste and municipal solid waste. 

Q: What will the source of your materials be? A: Primarily industrial and commercial customers. 

Q: Will you accept material from private parties? A: Not at this time, but possibly in the future. 

Q: What materials will you not accept? A: Asbestos, hazardous waste, including cars, lead, and municipal solid waste. 

Q: How will you prevent prohibited material from coming onto the site? A: Well, it can’t be completely prevented. If it 
comes in with a load we will dispose of it as solid waste, contain it and reship it, or otherwise dispose of it properly. 

Q: How will you deal with solid waste that may find its way into incoming recyclable material? A: Sort it out and dispose 
of it as solid waste. 

Q: How is material handled, processed, and stored between the time it arrives at the facility and when it departs? A: 
When we are operating under a permit we dump it, sort it, load it, and send it out. We will not be using shears or a 
shredder and will not be cutting metal. 

Q: How many trucks will be entering and exiting the site per day? A: Five a day to start. A lot more in the future. 

Q: Will there be any burning on site? A: No. 

Q: In your answer to Project Summary question #1 regarding purpose and scope of your operations you state there will 
be a transfer station in the back corner adjacent to the Gadient property.  Can you tell us what a transfer station is? A: It 
is a dumping area that may have a concrete or gravel surface where the loads are dropped and sorted.  

Q: What liquid containment provisions and airborne debris catching provisions do you plan for the transfer station? A: 
None, unless the PCA or county requires them.  

Q: Since you are not planning on installing a fence how will you prevent the spreading of debris by wind? A: That isn’t 
going to be a problem. The loads will be tarped. 

Q: An industrial recycling facility has a high probability of being incompatible with the predominantly residential area in 
which the proposed site is located. Are either of the two vacant recycling sites in the area that are zoned for this activity 
available for use in lieu of the Hay Creek site? A: They are not suitable for our purpose. 

Q:  With two area recycling facilities having gone out of business, what will make your operation different and able to 
survive? A: The one facility with which I am familiar went out of business by choice. They made some big investments in 
yards before the price of scrap went down and chose to consolidate to reduce costs when volume and prices dropped. We 
will operate more smartly.  

Q: What are your plans for use of the property between now and the time a license is issued by the MN PCA? A: Put up 
the building and continue to use the property as a storage yard.  



Q: Your cover letter states that the application for a MN PCA permit is contingent upon receiving the county conditional 
use permit (CUP). Would you accept a permit condition that no operations would be conducted before a PCA permit is 
granted? A: We would want to continue to park roll-offs there.  

Q: How do we know whether you will last in business or cut and run leaving  a messy site if things go bad? A: We know 
what we are doing. I have a good reputation in the business. We will make it. We plan to eventually turn the business 
over to our son.  

Q: Did you receive a “cease and desist”  letter about your use of your site, and if so, what did it require and did you 
comply? A: Yes. It said stop transferring material, and we complied. 

Q: What noise generators will you have operating on your site? A: Metal falling into boxes, and construction equipment 
noises. 

Q: You have said that the DOT design for your site access driveway is satisfactory for 80 foot long trucks entering and 
exiting. I (the questioner) have a similar layout and I know from personal experience it is not big enough for that size of 
truck. Why do you think it is going to work?  A: It’s not our design. It’s DOT’s. There isn’t going to be a traffic problem.  

Q: How will you deal with dust problems? A: We could sprinkle. 

QUESTIONS ABOUT IMPACTS ON NEIGHBORS 

Q: Question # 1 on the county permit application form asks about potential adverse effects of the proposed business 
operations on adjoining landowners. Do you recognize any potential adverse effects and, if so, how can they be 
reduced? A: We don’t see any adverse effects. 

Q: Your response to question #5 on the county permit application says your activities will be conducted during normal 
business hours. What are normal business hours? A: 6 AM to about 6 PM except for one truck that leaves about 4:30 
AM. 

Q: Which days of the week will the site be closed? A: Sunday. 

QUESTIONS ABOUT GROUNDWATER AND STORMWATER 

Q: Is the infiltration basin shown on the Ridgeline Group grading plan dated Oct 21, 2017, still planned? Since the 
function of the basin is to allow surface water to percolate into the ground it is essential that runoff going into the basin 
be free of anything that could pollute the water table.  Will site runoff water be treated before it enters the infiltration 
pond? A: We handle only non-hazardous material. There will be no need for treatment. 

Q: Where will overflow from the infiltration basin go? A: I don’t know the answers to the technical water flow questions. 

Q: Will any incoming material be placed on a surface that allows water to seep through it? A: Yes, potentially. 

Q: How will potential groundwater contaminants be prevented from leaching out of materials on the site? A: There are 
no groundwater pollutants in the material we handle.  

Q: How will stormwater be prevented from flowing onto Hay Creek Hills Drive from the south site entrance road? A: By a 
culvert and a swale. Most of the site water will not go down the driveway.  



Q: Have you completed a storm water pollution prevention plan? A: No. I won’t know if one is required until the MPCA 
lets me know. 

Q: Have you applied for an industrial stormwater permit for the proposed operation? A: No. I won’t know if one is 
required until the MPCA lets me know. 

RESIDENT COMMENTS ABOUT PROPOSED BUSINESS USE OF SIMANSKI PROPERTY 

Comment by adjoining landowner: “The noises you make on your property during the night spook my horses.” 

Comment by Hay Creek Hills resident: “ If I had known a business like this was going in on this site I would not have 
bought my home here.” 

Comment by adjoining landowner who described himself as “living in Simanski’s toilet” because he is downhill from their 
property : “I still have a pond in my yard from your overflow. I want you to come and fix it.” 



ISSUES THAT SHOULD BE CONSIDERED 

BY COUNTY STAFF AND THE PLANNING COMMISSION 

BEFORE THE GRANTING OF A PERMIT UNDER APPLICATION Z18.0017 

GENERAL 

The county’s definition  of a “junk/salvage yard” includes permissible activities that, if they are present, create a much 
greater need for permitting, restrictions, and oversight than if clean recycling were the only activity. The applicants 
proposal does not provide enough information to unambiguously define which activities will be performed on site and 
what risks their operations  will pose to safety and health. Since the applicant has not been prescriptive the county must 
be before permit conditions are drawn up. 

Since the extent of Pollution Control Agency review and regulation of hazardous waste permit applications depends on 
the Standard Industrial Code (SIC) of the proposed business  and the applicant has not provided a SIC the county should 
independently determine what the proper code is. 

Because of the residential nature of properties surrounding this site, and because of evidence gathered from  existing 
operations at the site it does not appear to be possible to meet the requirements set forth in the Goodhue County 
Zoning Ordinance, dated 2 Jan., 2018, Section 2, Subdivision 2, Findings  1 and 5, for the granting of a permit. 

An expert opinion should be provided as to whether proposed building construction, installation of impermeable 
surfaces, and grading changes to the site’s ground surface will increase the stormwater runoff from the site, and if so 
whether the increase is prohibited by law.  

Does the county believe that permitting a third site for a junk/ salvage yard is in the best interest when two vacant sites 
with suitable zoning may be available? 

The applicants have said they do not plan to apply for a MN PCA permit until a CUP is issued, and that they plan to 
continue storage operations on the site, without sorting, until a PCA permit is obtained.  Since the residents believe 
there are serious concerns about the willingness of the applicants to comply with temporary operation constraints, and 
because  operation without a PCA permit may endanger the health of surrounding residents we strongly recommend 
that any CUP  contain a condition that no  operation  be allowed until a PCA permit is issued. 

Even a well hidden industrial operation creates a blight in a residential area. The sight of construction equipment , 
dumpsters, other outside equipment, and wind scattered debris  further adds insult to injury. Any CUP should require a 
visual barrier around the site with design of the barrier subject to resident review before approval. 

Heavy truck traffic on Hay Creek Hills Dr. will increase  the township’s road maintenance cost.  Any CUP should include a 
requirement for the permit holder to reimburse the township for the increases. 

POLLUTION  ISSUES 

Because of the potential for groundwater contamination and debris dispersal any CUP for this site should require that all 
material dumping, sorting, and handling be carried out only in an enclosed building.  

A determination needs to be made as to whether the proposed operation requires a storm water pollution prevention 
plan. If it is required it should be a condition of the permit. 



A determination needs to be made as to whether the proposed operation requires an industrial stormwater permit. If it 
is required it should be a condition of the permit. 

The application lacks infiltration basin design data. Without proper design the basin presents a groundwater pollution 
hazard. The proposed plan should not be approved as submitted. Considering the proposed business’s potential for 
groundwater contamination at this site the county needs to ascertain: 

whether treatment of runoff before entry into the infiltration basin will be required 

what rain events the basin is designed for 

what the treatment characteristics, if any, of the basin are 

what the percolation rates of the soils below the site are 

and what the treatment characteristics are of the soils between the basin and the groundwater. 

Does the applicant’s proposal comply with all regulatory provisions the county has in place that protect the health and 
safety of its residents with regard to potential stormwater runoff,  groundwater contamination, air pollution, airborne 
debris dispersal, and leachate containment? 

Does the County have any recourse if they believe the license review and approval process by the MN PCA does not 
adequately ensure the County’s health and safety concerns regarding the proposed operation?  

Does the county or the state have the primary enforcement responsibility for the provisions of a PCA permit? 

Has MN  PCA permit enforcement, or assistance in county enforcement, been timely and effective in the past when 
compliance problems have developed? 

What are the human resources to which the county has ready access for permit enforcement purposes? Does the county 
have the technical expertise to enable informed enforcement of anti-pollution requirements? 

TRAFFIC SAFETY ISSUES 

The permit issued by the state DOT for a site access onto Hay Creek Hills Dr. should be critically reviewed for safety 
implications. 

If trucks are stacked up on Hay Creek Hills Dr. or southbound Hwy 58 trying to enter the Simanski site there is a good 
probability they will obscure southbound Hwy 58 traffic from the view of east bound Hay Creek Hills Dr. traffic trying to 
enter Hwy 58. Truck-trailer combinations exiting the site have the potential to prevent west bound Hay Creek Hills Dr. 
traffic from proceeding due to their inability to clear the west bound lane of the drive before coming to the stop sign.  

Posted speed limits in the area are 55 mph which may not provide adequate evasion time or space for vehicles entering 
Hwy 58 or leaving northbound Hwy 58 at the intersection of Hwy 58 and Hay Creek Hills Dr.  

The relatively steep grade of Hay Creek Hills Dr. as it approaches Hwy 58 will create the possibility of loss of control 
problems for east bound trucks that stop at the stop sign and attempt to restart on the grade during slippery conditions. 
Traction problems may also strand east bound trucks in front of Hwy 58 traffic if they can’t achieve their anticipated 
acceleration through the intersection.  



COMPLIANCE and TRUST 

Was the applicant issued a permit before building demolition was undertaken on the site last year? 

Do you know that demolition debris was buried on site? If so, was a permit issued in advance of the burial? 

Neighbors have complained to the Land Use Office about the applicant’s business use of their property. Was the 
applicant immediately compliant to your office’s request to them?  

Do you know that the applicants have been operating a business at the site without a permit? 

If a disregard for existing county requirements on the part of the applicant is known to exist will that disqualify the 
applicant from being granted a permit? 



APPENDIX 4









Land Use Management Staff Review of Simanski Metals LLC 
Zone Map Amendment Request   April 6, 2018 

Subd. 5 A.  The names and addresses of the petitioner or petitioners and their signatures to the 
petition.  See application 

B. Survey information: See application
C. The current and proposed district:  A2 (3.20 acres) to B2 (0.84 acres)
D. The current use and the proposed use of the land  See application
E. The reason for the requested change of zoning district. See application
F. A copy of the soil map showing the soils types within the proposed boundary and
the surrounding area. The applicant has submitted this information.
G. Prime Farmland Rating of the soil types in F.
 The Prime Farmland Rating for Agriculture is as follows:

Soil Name Slope 
Amount 
(acres) 

% of 
Total Prime Farmland Rating 

Timula-Mt. Carroll 6-12% 0.0 4.0% Farmland of Statewide Importance 
Timula-Mt. Caroll 12-18% 0.2 3.4% Not Prime Farmland 
Frankville-Nasset-Mt. 
Carrol 6-12% 2.2 

45.6% 
Farmland of Statewide Importance 

Chelsea loamy sand 2-6% 0.5 11.4% Not Prime Farmland 
Winneshiek-Waucoma 12-18% 1.9 39.2% Not Prime Farmland 

H. A statement of how the requested change is compatible with the Goodhue County
Comprehensive Plan including but not limited to the following:

1. The environmental impacts of the proposed use of land on the:
a. Groundwater The site includes an existing well that will be retained

for use by the proposed land uses.  Proposed site improvements will be
required to conform with applicable setbacks from the existing well.
The Transfer Station is subject to

b.natural plant and animal communities The subject property has been
significantly modified in the past due to varioius past uses of the
property.

c. existing trees and vegetation  Some of the existing trees and vegetation
were removed when various structure from prior uses of the property
were recently removed.  Additional vegetation will be removed if the
proposed site improvement are constructed.  Some existing trees will
be retained and the applicant has proposed some additional tree
plantings for screening and beautification, however no specifics
regarding species or height at the time of planting have been
provided.

d.bluffland stability No bluff impact zones on site or immediately
abutting property.

e. shoreland stability The subject property is not located within a
shoreland management area.  The nearest shoreland management

APPENDIX 5



overlay district is located more 4000 feet east of the site.  No negative 
impact on shoreland stability are anticipated. 
 

2. The compatibility with surrounding land uses  Nearby residents have 
expressed significant concerns regarding aesthetic impacts, noise 
impacts, traffic safety and potential for trash/junk to be blown onto 
surrounding properties and road right-of-ways.  Concerns have been 
expressed regarding these potential impacts affecting the ability of the 
nearby residents to use and enjoy their properties.  In addition concerns 
have been express regarding potential negative impacts on property 
values and development potential for surrounding properties. 

 
 

3. The physical and visual impacts on any scenic or historic amenities within 
or surrounding the proposed parcel. 
We do not indicate any historic amenities in the immediate vicinity. 
 

Subd. 6 The housing density of the affected Section 
  
Subd. 7 The impact on any surrounding agricultural uses.  Negative impacts on agricultural 

uses are not anticpated.  The site area proposed for change of zone to A-2 from B-
2 was previously used for business purposes and is not currently in agricultural 
use.    

   . 
Subd. 8 The impact on the existing transportation infrastructure The applicant has provided 

a copy of a Driveway Access Permit issued by the Minnesota Department of 
Transportation on 3/1/2018.  MNDOT has restricted use of an existing driveway 
access from State Highway 58 that is currently shared with a private driveway 
serving the Thomas B. Gadient Property situated north and west of the subject 
property.  The MNDOT Permit authorizes a driveway access to Hay Creek 
Hills Drive to be located at the Southeast corner of the proposed 0.84 acre 
parcel near the intersection of Hay Creek Hills Drive and State Highway 58.  
The proposed driveway access point onto Hay Creek Hills Trails falls within 
MNDOT Right-of-Way. 

 
 The proposed driveway to Hay Creek Hills Drive would connect to a gravel 
surface just west of the limit of the bituminous surface extending approximately 
50 feet into Hay Creek Hills Drive from the right turn lane of State Hwy 58.  
The turning movement of trucks into and out of site will cause significant wear 
and tear on the gravel surface.   

 
The Applicant has indicated they have five drivers and anticipate increasing 
that number to ten.   They have not provide an estimate of the number of daily 
trips expected to be generated by the proposed Metals Recycling/Transfer 
Station Use. 

 



Subd. 9 The impact on surrounding zoning districts  Surrounding zoning districts within 
Section 8 of Hay Creek Township include additional A2 (Agriculture) Zoned 
property including 9 dwellings a strip of R1 (Suburban Residence) Zoned property 
including 5 dwelling sites (Moore’s Addition) located directly east of the Simanski 
Metals LLC Property along the east Right-of-Way of Hwy 58. Fourteen dwelling 
are located within 1800 feet of the subject property. 

Subd. 10 A statement concerning the cumulative effect and compatibility of the requested 
zoning change on the affected Township and any cities located within 2 miles of the 
proposed parcel.  The Hay Creek Township Planning Commission held a public 
meeting on April 5, 2018, to discuss the Proposed Business Use of the Simanski 
Metals LLC Property.  A copy of questions raised and responses offered by 
Kevin Simanski has been provided the County (see attachment) 

Subd. 11. Additional information as may be requested by the Planning Commission or zoning 
staff. 








	PAC Report
	Applicant Text Amendment
	Staff Amendment
	CompPlan_AgElement1
	Element 1: Agriculutre
	Plant Agriculture
	Animal Agriculture
	Agriculturally Related Businesses


	Application_Documents



